








 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE:   July 11, 2017       AGENDA ITEM: 2A  
 
TITLE:   
Discuss Ethics Ordinance and receive input from citizens. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
David Bragg, City Attorney 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On May 23, 2017, Judge Chris Duggan, Chairman of the Ethics Committee, presented the 
Committee’s recommended changes to the Ethics Ordinance, as discussed during the Ethic 
Committee’s May 1st meeting.  Council agreed to hold a work session starting at 5:00 p.m. to 
receive public input as well as discuss the Committee’s suggested recommendations. 
 
At the request of Councilmember Debra Jones, Alan Bojorquez, Bojorquez Law Firm, PC, was 

retained as special counsel to review the Ethics Ordinance since his field of specialty is municipal 

law.  During Tuesday’s work session, the City Attorney and City Manager will walk the Council 

through the items that warrant additional discussion. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Red-lined version of Ethics Ordinance with recommended changes. 

 Version, with recommended changes accepted, for ease of reading and comprehension. 

 Citizens’ suggested amendments to the Ethics Ordinance 
   



ARTICLE 1.15 - CODE OF ETHICS 

 

DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY 

   

Sec. 1.15.001 - Definitions. 

“Board, body, commission, and task force” means and includes any group of 

individuals assigned, appointed, or serving the city at the Council's or City 

Manager’s request or direction, or any group otherwise convened by the city to 

assist with city business.  

“Business entity” means either a sole proprietorship, partnership, limited 

partnership, firm, corporation, limited liability company, holding company, joint-

stock company, receivership, trust, unincorporated association, or any other entity 

recognized by law.  

“City Council” means the Mayor and elected members of the City Council.  

“City official” includes all of the following:  

 (1)  Every member of the City Council (including the Mayor), the City 

Manager, the Executive Director of the economic development corporation, the 

City Attorney, the City Secretary, all city department directors,  police chief,  fire 

chief, fire marshal, and persons acting in the capacity of the aforementioned city 

officials, whether appointed, or employed, unless that person reports to the City 

Manager or is employed in one of the City departments under the direction of the 

City Manager. 

 (2)  Members of all boards, commissions, task forces, and other bodies 

created by the City Council pursuant to federal or state law or city charter or 

ordinance, including entities that may be only advisory in nature whose members 

are appointed by City Council action or whose members are designated in the 

bylaws or organizational papers of the entity to serve on behalf of the city;  

 (3)  All board members of any entity who are appointed by the City Council 

to such board membership; and  

 (4)  Any other individual identified by the City Council, local or state law to 

be a city official, if any.  



“Clear and convincing evidence” means that measure or degree of proof that 

produces in the mind of the members of the Ethics Commission a firm belief as to 

the truth of the facts or allegations sought to be established.  

“Confidential government information” means i all information held by the city 

that is not available to the public under the Texas Public Information Act and any 

information obtained or acquired from participation in a meeting that was closed to 

the public pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act, unless disclosure is otherwise 

required or permitted under state law, a ruling by the state attorney general, or an 

order of a court with jurisdiction over the matter.  

“De minimis” means a value or amount that is so small as to be entirely 

inconsequential.  

“Degree of affinity” means a relationship by affinity (marriage) as defined in 

Texas Government Code, §§ 573.024 and 573.025, or as amended. (See attachment 

A.)  

“Degree of consanguinity” means a relationship by consanguinity (blood) as 

defined in V.T.C.A. Government Code, §§ 573.022 and 573.023, or as amended. 

(See attachment A.)  

“Documents” means includes all writings (notes, correspondence, memoranda, 

reports, computer print-outs, etc.), drawings, drafts, charts, photographs, tape or 

disc recordings (whether sound or video), and all other data compilations from 

which information can be obtained or translated, regardless of the medium on 

which the documents are stored or maintained. “Economic interest” means a legal 

or equitable property interests in land, chattels, and intangibles, business 

opportunities, and/or contractual rights having more than de minimis value. A 

person has an economic interest in a business entity, if the person is an employee 

or is a paid contract worker/consultant of the business entity. Unpaid service by a 

city official or employee as an officer, director, advisor, or otherwise active 

participant in a nonprofit entity does not create, for that city official or employee, 

an economic interest in the property of the organization. Ownership of an interest 

in a mutual or common investment fund that holds securities or other assets is not 

an economic interest in such securities or other assets unless the person in question 

participates in the management of the fund. Ownership of stock in a publicly 

traded corporation does not constitute ownership for purposes of this code if the 

employee or city official owns less than 10% of the voting stock or shares of the 

entity and the fair market value of the stock is less than $15,000.  



“Employee” is a  person employed by the city, including those individuals who 

work on a part-time basis, unless that person reports to the City Manager or is 

employed in one of the City departments under the direction of the City Manager; 

and the term does not include any independent contractor or contractual consultant.  

“Intentionally” means the act or omission was done with a conscious objective or 

desire to engage in the conduct or cause the result.  

“Knowingly” means an  actual awareness of the impropriety of the acts or 

omissions in question, at the time of the act or practice complained of.  Actual 

awareness may be inferred where objective manifestations indicate that a person 

acted with actual awareness. “Official action” iIncludes:  

 (1)  Any affirmative act (including the making of a recommendation) within 

the scope of, or in violation of a city official's or employee's duties; and  

 (2)  Any unexcused failure to act if the city official or employee is under a 

duty to act. “Official information” means information gathered or provided 

pursuant to the power or authority of city government.  

“Recklessly” means  with respect to circumstances surrounding his or her conduct 

or the result of his or her conduct when he or she is aware of but consciously 

disregards a substantial and unjustifiable risk that the circumstances exist or the 

result will occur. The risk must be of such a nature and degree that its disregard 

constitutes a gross deviation from the standard of care that an ordinary person 

would exercise under the same or similar circumstances.  

“Representation” means  all forms of communication and personal appearances in 

which a person, not acting in performance of official duties, formally serves as an 

advocate for private interests, regardless of whether the representation is 

compensated. Lobbying may be a form of representation. Representation does not 

include appearance as a fact witness or expert witness in litigation or other official 

proceedings.  

(Ord. No. 2015-20, pt. 1A., 10-13-15)  

Sec. 1.15.002 – Limitation on Application of Ethics Ordinance 

 This Ethics Ordinance does not apply to any person that is employed by the 

City that who reports to the City Manager or is employed in one of the City 

departments under the direction of the City Manager.  



 

Secs. 1.15.003—1.15.030 - Reserved. 

 

 

DIVISION 2. - CURRENT CITY OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES 

   

Sec. 1.15.031 - Improper economic benefit. 

 (a)  General rule. A city official or employee shall not take any official 

action that he or she knows  is likely to affect, or that might reasonably be expected 

to affect, the economic interests of:  

 (1)  The city official or city employee;  

 (2)  His or her parent, child, spouse, or other family member within the third 

degree of consanguinity or second degree of affinity;  

 (3)  His or her outside client;  

 (4)  A member of his or her household;  

 (5)  The outside employer of the city official/employee or the outside 

employer of the city official's oremployee's parent, child or spouse, or such outside 

employer's family member, within the third degree of consanguinity or second 

degree of affinity;  

 (6)  A business entity in which the city official or employee knows that any 

of the persons listed in subsections (a)(1) or (a)(2) or (a)(5) holds an economic 

interest;  

 (7)  A business entity which the city official or employee knows is an 

affiliated business or partner of a business entity in which any of the persons listed 

in subsection (a)(1) or (a)(2) holds an economic interest;  

 (8)  A business entity or nonprofit entity for which the city official or 

employee serves as an officer or director or in any other policy making position; or  

 (9)  A business entity or a person (or someone related to the person within 

the third degree of consanguinity or second degree of affinity):  



 (A)  From whom, within the past twelve (12) months, the city official or 

employee, or his or her spouse, child or parent, directly or indirectly has:  

  (i)  Solicited an offer of employment; or  

  (ii)  Received and not rejected an offer of employment; or  

  (iii)  Accepted an offer of employment, whether compensated or not 

and regardless of the level of compensation; or  

 (B)  With whom the city official or employee, or his or her spouse, directly 

or indirectly is engaged, or within the past twelve months engaged, in negotiations 

pertaining to business opportunities.  

(Ord. No. 2015-20, pt. 1B., 10-13-15)  

Sec. 1.15.032 - Unfair advancement of private interests. 

 (a)  General rule. A city official or employee may not use his or her official 

position to unfairly advance or impede private interests, or to grant or secure, or 

attempt to grant or secure, for any person (including himself or herself) any form 

of special consideration, treatment, exemption, or advantage beyond that which is 

lawfully available to other persons. A city official or employee violates this rule if 

he or she represents to a person that he or she will or may attempt to provide any 

advantage to that person, based on the city official's or employee's position on the 

governing body or with the entity.   (b)  Special rules. The following special 

rules apply in addition to the general rule noted above:  

 (1)  Acquisition of interest in impending matters. A city official or employee 

shall not acquire an interest in any contract, transaction, business opportunity, 

decision, or other matter, if the city official or employee knows, or has reason to 

know, that the city official's or employee's interest will be directly or indirectly 

affected by impending official action by the city.  

 (2)   Reciprocal favors. A city official or employee may not enter into an 

agreement or understanding with any other person that official action by the city 

official or employee will be rewarded, affected or reciprocated by the other person, 

directly or indirectly, in any way, or at any time.  

 (3)  Appointment/employment of relatives. A city official or employee shall 

not appoint or employ, or vote to appoint or employ, any relative of the city official 



or employee within the second degree affinity and third degree of consanguinity, to 

any office or in any position within the city, including a position of employment 

with the city.  

 (c)  Recusal and disclosure. A city official or employee whose conduct 

would otherwise violate subsection (b)(3) of this rule shall adhere to the recusal 

and disclosure provisions provided in section 1.15.031(b).  

Sec. 1.15.034 - Gifts.   

City officials and employees shall adhere to state law regarding giving and  

receiving oraccepting gifts, as set forth in the V.T.C.A. Penal Code, ch. 36 et seq., 

and as amended from time to time.  

Sec. 1.15.035 - Representation before a member's own commission, board, task 

force, or before the City Council. 

 (a)  Representation by a currently serving member of a board, body, 

commission or task force. A city official or employee who is currently a member 

of a board, body, commission, or task force shall not represent any person, group, 

or entity: (1)  Before the member's own board, body, commission or task force; 

or  

 (2)  Before city staff having responsibility for making recommendations to, 

or taking any action on behalf of, the member's own board, body, commission, or 

task force; or  

 (3)  Before the City Council, or other board, body, commission, or task force 

which has appellate jurisdiction or final decision making authority over decisions 

and recommendations made by the member's own board, body, commission, or 

task force.  

 (4)  Exception: The appellate body may, if it desires, seek clarification of an 

advisory body's recommendation by asking the Chair of the advisory body to 

attend a meeting held by the appellant body, to present information concerning the 

advisory body's evaluation, decision making process, recommendation and/or vote. 

If the Chair of the advisory body voted in the minority on the item in question, then 

the Chair should appoint another member of the advisory body (who was not in the 

minority) to present the advisory body's evaluation, decision making process, 

recommendation and/or vote to the appellant body.  

https://www.municode.com/library/tx/bastrop/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CH1GEPR_ART1.15COET_DIV2CUOFEM_S1.15.031IMECBE


 (b)  Representation before the City Council, boards, bodies, commissions or 

task forces.  

 (1)  General rule. A city official or employee shall not represent any person, 

group, or entity before the City Council, its boards, bodies, commissions, or task 

forces.  A city official or employee may, however, represent himself or herself or 

his or her spouse or minor children before the City Council, its boards, bodies, 

commissions, or task forces if he or she can demonstrate a personal injury 

orinterest that is directly affected by the relevant action of the City Council, 

boards, bodies, commissions or task forces.  

 (2)  Client representation exception for board members on certain matters. A  

city official who is serving only as an appointed member of a board, body, 

commission, or task force may represent others before the City Council, boards, 

bodies, commissions or task forces if the matter is not related, directly or indirectly 

to his or her duties as a city official (3)  Prestige of office and improper 

influence. In connection with the representation of private interests before the city 

board, body, commission or task force, a city official or employee shall not:  

 (A)  Assert the prestige of the city official's or employee's city position for 

the purpose of advancing private interests; or  

 (B)  State or imply that he or she is able to influence any city action on any 

basis, other than on the merits of the matter.  

 (c)  Representation in litigation adverse to the city.  

 (1)  City officials and employees.  A city official or employeeshall not 

represent any person, group, or entity, other than himself or herself, or his or her 

spouse or minor children, in any litigation to which the city is a party, with the 

exception of defense of suits involving misdemeanors, if the interests of that 

person, group, or entity are adverse to the interests of the city.  This provision does 

not prevent a person who is a city official solely because of his or her service on a 

city board, body, commission or task force from representing a person or entity in 

litigation adverse to the City so long as the litigation is not related, directly or 

indirectly to his or her duties as a city official.  

(Ord. No. 2016-10, pt. 1, 5-10-16)  

Sec. 1.15.036 - Conflicting outside employment. 



A city official or employee shall not solicit, accept, or engage in concurrent outside 

employment or work activity which could reasonably be expected to impair 

independence of judgment in, or faithful performance of, his or her official duties. 

A city official or employee shall not engage in outside employment, including self-

employment, where such employment would constitute a conflict of interest or 

would adversely affect the city official's or employee's performance of his or her 

work responsibilities with the city. For employees, all outside employment shall 

comply with the city's employment personnel policies or procedures.  

Sec. 1.15.037 - Confidential information. 

 (a)  Improper access. A city official or employee shall not use his or her 

position to obtain official information for any purpose other than the performance 

of official duties.  

 (b)  Improper disclosure or use. A city official or employee shall not 

intentionally, knowingly, or recklessly disclose any confidential government 

information gained by reason of the city official's or employee's position.  This rule 

does not prohibit:  

 (1)  Any disclosure of information that is no longer confidential by law; or  

 (2)  The confidential reporting of illegal or unethical conduct to authorities 

designated by law.  

 (c) Executive sessions.  A city official or employee may not disclose the 

content of discussions held in executive sessions except to say which topics were 

discussed (as shown on the agenda). 

 (d) Pending litigation.  A city official or employee may not discuss 

pending litigation with any person other than the City Manager and City Attorney 

without the express authorization of the City Attorney.  Any inquiries from any 

person must be referred immediately, without substantive comment, to the City 

Attorney. 

Sec. 1.15.038 - Public property and resources. 

A city official or employee shall not use, request, or permit the use of city 

facilities, personnel, equipment, or supplies for private purposes (including 

political purposes), except:  



 (1)   Pursuant to duly adopted city policies; or  

 (2)  To the extent and according to the terms that those resources are 

lawfully available to the public.  

Sec. 1.15.039 - Political activity. 

 (a)  Influencing subordinates.  

 (1)  A city official or employee shall not, directly or indirectly, induce or 

attempt to induce any subordinate of the city official or employee:  

 (A)  To participate in an election campaign, contribute to a candidate or 

political committee, or engage in any other political activity relating to a particular 

party, candidate, or issue; or  

 (B)  To refrain from engaging in any lawful political activity.  

 (2)  A general statement merely encouraging another person to exercise their 

right to vote does not violate this rule.  

 (b)  Paid campaigning. A city official or employee shall not accept anything 

of value, directly or indirectly, for political purposes or activities relating to an 

item pending on a ballot, if he or she participated in, or provided advice relating to, 

the exercise of discretionary authority by a city board, body, commission or task 

force that contributed to the development of the ballot item. For purposes of this 

rule, "anything of value" does not include a meal or other item of nominal value 

the city official or employee received in return for providing information about an 

item on the ballot.  This rule does not prohibit a city official who is a candidate for 

public office from accepting campaign contributions for his or her own campaign.  

 (c)  City-owned vehicles. A city official or employee shall not display or fail 

to remove political campaign materials on any vehicle owned by the city under the 

city official and/or employee's control.  

Sec. 1.15.040 - Supervisory duties. 

A city official or employee who has direct supervisory authority over another 

person providing services relating to the business of the city shall make reasonable 

efforts to ensure that the conduct of the supervised person is compatible with the 

obligations imposed on city officials and employees by this article. Reasonable 



efforts includes notifying and making information regarding this article readily 

available.  

Sec. 1.15.041 - Training. 

 (a)  Employees. The City Manager will make reasonable efforts to ensure 

that city employees receive training related to this article, at a minimum of every 

twenty-four (24) months.  

 (b)  City officials. The city attorney will be available and prepared to 

provide annual training for all city officials on this article, at the request and/or 

direction of the city. The City Secretary shall coordinate an annual date for training 

all city officials.  

Sec. 1.15.042 - Actions of others. 

 (a)   Violations by other persons. A city official or employee shall not 

knowingly, intentionally or recklessly assist, induce, or attempt to assist or induce, 

any person to violate any provision of this Code.  

 (b)  Using others to engage in forbidden conduct. A city official or employee 

shall not knowingly or intentionally  violate, or attempt to violate, the provisions of 

this article through the acts of another.  

Secs. 1.15.043—1.15.060 - Reserved. 

 

 

DIVISION 3. - FORMER CITY OFFICIAL(S) AND EMPLOYEE(S) 

   

Sec. 1.15.061 - Subsequent representation of private interests. 

 (a)  Representation by a former member of the Council, board, body, 

commission, or task force.  

 (1)  For a minimum period of twelve (12) months after the termination of his 

or her official or employment duties, a former city official or employee shall not 

represent any person, group, or entity, other than himself or herself, or his or her 

spouse or minor children, upon any issue related to his or her former duties:  

 (A)  Before the City Council, board, body, commission or task force;  



 (B)  Before a city staff member having responsibility for making 

recommendations to, or taking any action on behalf of, that board, body, 

commission, or task force; or  

 (C)  Before the Council, board, body, commission or task force, which has 

appellate jurisdiction over the board, body, commission or task force, of which the 

city official or employee was a member.  

 (2)  This subsection does not apply to a person who was classified as a city 

official only because he or she was an appointed member of a board, body, 

commission or task force.  

 (3)  In connection with the representation of private interests before the City 

Council, board, body, commission or task force, a former city official or employee 

shall not state or imply that he or she is able to influence any city action on any 

basis other than on the merits.  

 (b)  Representation in litigation adverse to the city. A former city official or 

employee shall not, absent consent from the city, represent any person, group, or 

entity, other than himself or herself, or his or her spouse or minor children, in any 

litigation to which the city is a party, if the interests of that person, group, or entity 

are adverse to the interests of the city and the matter is one in which the former city 

official or employee personally and substantially participated prior to termination 

of his or her official duties or employment. The City Council shall be the final 

decision making authority concerning whether the participation of a city official or 

employee in the matter was sufficiently "substantial" to trigger this prohibition.  

Sec. 1.15.062 - Employment relating to a city contract. 

 (a)   Performance of compensated work. A former city official or employee 

shall not, within two (2) years of the termination of their official duties, perform 

work on a compensated basis for any entity other than the city, relating to an 

existing contract with the city, if he or she personally and substantially participated 

in the negotiation or awarding of the compensated work. The City Council shall be 

the final decision making authority concerning whether the participation of a city 

official or employee in a matter was sufficiently "substantial" to trigger this 

prohibition. The city may waive this provision, after a public hearing on a request 

by a former city official or employee to do so, if it is in the public's best interest to 

do so.  



 (b)  Personal interest in city contracts. A city official or employee shall not, 

either during their service with the city or within twelve (12) months of the 

termination of the official duties, have an economic interest, direct or indirect, in 

any contract with the city, nor shall they be financially interested, directly or 

indirectly, in the sale to the city of any land, materials, supplies or service. Any 

willful violation of this section shall constitute malfeasance in office, and any city 

official or employee violating this section shall forfeit his/her office or position. 

Any violation of this section, with the knowledge expressed or implied of a person 

or corporation contracting with the city, shall render the contract involved voidable 

by the Council. (See also city charter, Section 13.01.).  This section does not 

prohibit the City Council or City Manager from contracting with a former city 

official to perform consulting services for the benefit of the City.  

Sec. 1.15.063 - Continuing confidentiality. 

A former city official or employee shall not use or disclose confidential 

governmental information acquired during their service as a city official or 

employee. This rule does not prohibit:  

 (1)  Any disclosure or use that is authorized or required by law; or  

 (2)  The confidential reporting of illegal or unethical conduct to authorities 

designated by law.  

Secs. 1.15.064—1.15.090 - Reserved. 

 

DIVISION 4. - GENERAL ANTI-DISCRIMINATION POLICY 

   

Sec. 1.15.091 - General rule. 

City affairs must be conducted without bias or prejudice. A city official or 

employee shall not, in the performance of official duties, manifest by words or 

conduct, bias or prejudice toward any person, group, or entity, including bias or 

prejudice based upon race, sex, religion, national origin, disability, age, sexual 

orientation, sexual identity, or socioeconomic status, and shall not permit others 

subject to his or her direction and control to do so.  

Sec. 1.15.092 - Exceptions. 

A city official or employee is not in violation of this section:  

https://www.municode.com/library/tx/bastrop/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIHORUCH_ARTXIIIGEPR_S13.01PEINCO


 (1)  For conduct undertaken in good faith to implement an existing city 

policy, or to carry out the directions of a superior if the violation is unknown to the 

city official or employee acting upon a supervisor's direction; or  

 (2)  For advocacy of  issues involving race, sex, religion, national origin, 

disability, age, sexual orientation, gender identity, or socioeconomic status in 

litigation or similar proceedings, or incidental to the formation of city policy.  

Sec. 1.15.093 - Definitions. 

For purposes of this division:  

“Good faith” means that the city official or employee has a reasonable basis for 

believing, and does in fact believe, that the conduct in question is lawful and not 

discriminatory.  

“Legitimate advocacy” means that the position espoused is not frivolous.  

“Manifesting by words or conduct, bias or prejudice” iIncludes, but is not limited 

to, physical abuse, verbal abuse, threats, intimidation, harassment, sexual 

harassment, coercion, assault, stalking, hate speech, and other conduct that 

threatens or endangers the health or safety of any person.  

Secs. 1.15.094-1.15.120 - Reserved. 

 

 

DIVISION 5. - ENFORCEMENT 

 

   

Sec. 1.15.121 - Creation of ethics commission. 

An ethics commission is hereby created and consists of five members, all of whom 

must reside within jurisdiction of the city, which for purposes of this article 

expressly includes the city's extraterritorial jurisdiction. Each member of the City 

Council may submit to the Mayor names of recommended appointees for vacant 

positions. The Mayor, shall who will make the appointment or appointments, 

subject to confirmation by the City Council.  Members of the Ethics Commission 

may not hold or be a candidate for any  elected or appointed city office any time 

during their service on the ethics commission.  

Sec. 1.15.122 - Terms/limits. 



Appointees to the Ethics Commission shall serve for terms of three (3) years. 

However, in order to ensure continuity by implementing staggered terms of 

service, the first three (3) appointees shall draw lots so that one member serves a 

one-year term, the second serves a two-year term, and the third serves a three-year 

term. No person may serve more than two (2) consecutive three-year terms. A 

person may be reappointed after having been off the Ethics Commission for twelve 

(12) consecutive months.  

Sec. 1.15.123 - Ethics commission vacancies. 

All vacancies on the ethics commission shall be filled within sixty (60) days of the 

vacancy, for the remainder of the unexpired term, as provided in the City Charter.  

No member of the Ethics Commission shall participate in the discussion of or vote 

on a complaint in which any of the evidence was presented to the Commission 

prior to the member’s appointment. 

Sec. 1.15.124 - Removal of Ethics Commission members. 

In addition to the City Council's usual powers of removal, members of the Ethics 

Commission may be removed by a majority vote of the City Council for cause 

only.  

Sec. 1.15.125 - Conflicts of interest. 

When a complaint is referred to or comes under the purview of the Ethics 

Commission, it shall be the responsibility of the City Manager and the City 

Attorney to attempt to identify any potential conflicts of interest that may be 

present between any of the serving Ethics Commission members and the persons 

or entities involved in the ethics complaint. The City Manager shall promptly 

report any identified, potential conflicts, to the City Council and, if the City 

Council agrees that there is a actual or potential conflict of interest,  the City 

Council shall, within thirty (30) days, take formal action to appoint a special 

replacement appointee to the Ethics Commission to hear and decide the matter that 

is subject of the conflict. The special replacement appointee shall retire from 

service once the matter at hand has been disposed of, and the regularly appointed 

Ethics Commission member shall resume service for the remainder of the Ethics 

Commission member's term.  

(Ord. No. 2012-1, 1-10-12)  

Sec. 1.15.126 - Chair/quorum. 



 (a)   The Ethics Commission shall elect a chairperson, who shall preside 

over the hearings before the Ethics Commission. The chairperson shall serve a one-

year term. The City Secretary shall be the repository of all filings and records of 

the Ethics Commission.  

 (b)  The Ethics Commission may evaluate and discuss its own policies and 

procedures as well as  recommendations to the City Council concerning matters 

related to the standard of conduct for city officials and employees that are 

unrelated to any pending complaint.  The quorum for such a meeting shall be three 

members, one of whom may participate in (and be considered to be present at) the 

commission meeting by use of remote technology, such as telephone or video 

conferencing.  (c) If all five members of the Ethics Commission are present 

for a vote to sustain or dismiss a complaint or impose sanctions, four of the 

Commissioners must vote to sustain the complaint or impose the sanctions; 

otherwise, it must be dismissed.  If four members of the Ethics Commission are 

present for a vote to sustain or dismiss a complaint or impose sanctions, three of 

the Commissioners must vote to sustain the complaint or impose sanctions; 

otherwise is shall be dismissed.  If three members of the Ethics Commission are 

present for a vote to sustain or dismiss a complaint or impose sanctions, all three of 

the Commissioners  must vote to sustain the complaint or impose sanctions; 

otherwise the complaint must be dismissed. 

 

(Ord. No. 2013-27, 12-10-13)  

Sec. 1.15.127 - Meetings. 

The Ethics Commission shall meet when necessary to carry out its responsibilities, 

but in any event the Ethics Commission shall hold an annual meeting during the 

month of February to elect its chairperson. Any Ethics Commission member may 

call a meeting of the Ethics Commission, provided that reasonable notice is given 

to all other Ethics Commission members. All Ethics Commission meetings shall be 

noticed, posted and conducted in compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act.  

Sec. 1.15.128 - Jurisdiction of the commission. 

The Ethics Commission shall have jurisdiction over complaints involving the 

employees as defined in this ordinance, members of the City Council, city officials 

and other persons appointed to serve the city by the City Council. The City 

Manager shall have exclusive jurisdiction and authority to investigate and hear 



ethics complaints involving city employees that report to the City Manager or are 

employed in one of the City departments under the direction of the City Manager  

pursuant to the city's approved personnel policies.   

Sec. 1.15.129 - Duties of the commission. 

(a)  The Ethics Commission shall:  

 (1)  Make recommendations to the City Council concerning matters relating 

to the standard of conduct for city officials and employees.  

 (2)  Maintain the confidentiality of any documents properly deemed 

confidential which are filed with the Ethics Commission.  The documents shall be 

retained consistent with the City’s records retention policies. (3)  Review and 

investigate complaints related to violations of this article and issue written 

ruling(s).  

(b)  The Eethics Commission may:  

 (1)  Prepare reports and make recommendations to the City Council 

regarding ethical issues affecting the city. 

 (2)  Respond to inquiries from interested persons concerning policies and 

procedures of the commission.  

 (3)  Seek any necessary assistance from the City Council and City Manager 

regarding financial support needed to carry out the Ethics Commission's duties.  

 (4)  Adopt rules of procedures for carrying out this article.  

Sec. 1.15.130 - Role of the City Attorney. 

(a)  The City attorney shall serve as legal counsel and staff liaison to the Ethics 

Commission. However, when complaints related to violations of this article are 

filed relating to the Mayor, City Council Members, City Manager, City Attorney, 

city prosecutor or municipal court judge, independent legal counsel must  be 

retained by the Ethics Commision  to perform the duties that otherwise would be 

performed by the City Attorney.  

(b)  The City Attorney shall serve as ethics advisor, only, to city employees and 

city officials, and shall not represent employees or city officials before the Ethics 



Commission. As ethics advisor, the City Attorney is available to respond 

confidentially to inquiries from employees, city officials, and others appointed to 

serve the city by the City Council, on matters related to the content of this article. 

However, as legal counsel to the Ethics Commission, the city attorney may not 

advise or represent any person or party in any proceeding before the Ethics 

Commission.  

(c)  Upon receipt of an ethics complaint, the Ccity Attorney shall conduct a 

preliminary analysis,  review and investigation of the complaint. Upon completion 

of the preliminary analysis,  review and investigation, the City Attorney shall 

forward a written report detailing the initial legal review and recommendation to 

the Eethics Commission for its evaluation and action. If a sworn complainant 

alleges a violation by the City Attorney, the review and analysis will be performed 

by the independent counsel.   

Sec. 1.15.131 - Complaints. 

(a)  All complaints alleging a violation of this article and all other documents to be 

presented to or considered by the Commission shall be filed with the City 

Secretary with a file stamp showing the date of receipt.  Complaints must:  

 (1)  Be submitted, in writing, on a form prescribed by the City Council;  

 (2)  Be signed under oath;  

 (3)  Ccite the provision(s) of this article allegedly violated; and  

 (4)  Provide the facts and evidence, if any, supporting the alleged violation.  

Any false statements that are intentionally, knowingly, or recklessly made under 

oath by a complainant shall subject the complainant to legal redress, including 

potential prosecution under state law.  

(b)  All documents submitted to the Ethics Commission shall be supported by 

affidavit.  Complaints and any evidence collected during the investigation of the 

alleged violation which are excepted from disclosure under the Public Information 

Act shall be kept confidential by the Ethics Commission, the City Attorney or 

independent counsel and City Secretary unless disclosure is otherwise required by 

state law or order of the state attorney general or a court of competent jurisdiction.  



(c)  Any complaint alleging a violation of this article is to be filed with the City 

Secretary  within six months from the date on which the complainant knew of or 

should have known of the alleged violation. Complaints filed after that period will 

not be considered.  

(d)  No later than three business days after receipt of the complaint, the 

CitySecretary shall acknowledge receipt of the complaint by certified mail, return 

receipt requested.  At the same time, the City Secretary shall provide a file-

stamped copy of the complaint and any supporting affidavits (1) to the Ethics 

Commission, City Attorney and any accused party. An accused party shall have 

twenty-one  business days from receipt of the complaint to submit a sworn written 

response to the complaint to the City Secretary.  

(e)  All documents filed in connection with an ethics complaint or to be considred 

by the commission must be served on all other parties to the proceeding and the 

City Attorney or independent counsel.  Any document which is filed but not served 

on all other parties to the proceeding and City Attorney or independent counsel 

may not be considered by the Ethics Commission. 

(f)  Within ten business days after receiving the written response, the City Attorney 

shall conduct a preliminary analysis,  review and investigation of the complaint, 

including a review of any available evidence, to determine whether there appears 

to be a legal basis for the complaint. The City Attorney shall  submit  his or her 

written report to the Ethics Commission as set forth in section 1.15.130(c) above. 

Within ten business days after receipt of the City Attorney’s written report, the 

Ethics Commission through the City Secretary shall notify the complainant and 

any accused party in writing delivered by certified mail, return receipt requested if 

the Commission intends to schedule a hearing or take other action concerning the 

complaint. If the Ethics Commission determines not to proceed, it shall, through 

the City Secretary, notify the complainant and the City Attorney or his or her 

substitute in writing that the complaint has been dismissed and that no further 

action will be taken.  

(g)  Any and all reasonable legal fees incurred by the accused party shall be paid 

by the complainant, if the Ethics Commission finds that there was no violation, and 

determines that the complaint was :  

 (1)  Groundless as a matter of law; or 

 (2)  Filed in  bad faith; or  

https://www.municode.com/library/tx/bastrop/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CH1GEPR_ART1.15COET_DIV5EN_S1.15.130ROAT


 (3)  Filed for the purpose of harassment.  

Sec. 1.15.132 - Ex parte communications. 

After a complaint has been filed with the City Secretary, and during the 

consideration of the complaint by the City Attorney or the Ethics Commission, 

neither the City Attorney nor a member of the Ethics Commission may  

communicate directly or indirectly with any party or representative of a party 

except at a meeting of the Ethics Commission.  If the Ethics Commission needs 

assistance in gathering additional information or documents, it shall request the 

City Attorney (or his or her substitute) to perform that function for it. 

Sec. 1.15.133 - Hearings. 

(a)  A hearing convened by the Ethics Commission may be open to the public or 

closed, if the hearing is permitted to be closed under the Open Meetings Act.  At 

any stage of the proceeding, including but not limited to the hearing, any party may 

be represented by a licensed attorney.  The Ethics Commission hearing shall be 

held as expeditiously as possible, but in any event no later than ninety days from 

the date the sworn, written complaint was received by the City Secretary.  A 

continuance may be granted by the Chair only for good cause shown.    The Ethics 

Commission hearing shall be transcribed by a court reporter, and the record of the 

hearing shall be maintained by the Ethics Commission as required by the City of 

Bastrop records retention policies. Witnesses before the Ethics Commission shall 

be placed under oath when providing testimony to the Ethics Commission. The 

Ethics Commission shall conduct the hearing under its own procedures. Formal 

rules of procedure, testimony, and evidence shall not apply.  

(b)  The issues at the formal hearing before the Ethics Commission shall be 

whether the act or omission that is the subject matter of the complaint (1) actually 

occurred, (2) whether the act or omission is a violation of the Ethics Ordinance, 

and (3) whether an award of attorney’s fees is appropriate.  The Ethics 

Commission may find a violation whether or not there is a financial loss.  The 

Ethics Commission shall make its decision based on clear and convincing 

evidence.  If the Ethics Commission determines that a violation has occurred, it 

shall state its finding(s) in writing, identify the particular provision(s) of this article 

that have been violated, and deliver a copy of its findings to the City Secretary, 

City Attorney, complainant, the accused party within twenty-one  business days of 

closing the Ethics Commission hearing. Extensions of this time may be necessary 

and allowed in complex cases, but if an extension is required all interested parties 



shall be notified of the extension.  Evidence that there was no actual financial loss 

to any party as a result of the violation is not an excuse for a violation.  

Sec. 1.15.134 - Sanctions. 

(a)  If the Ethics Commission determines that a city official, or employee has 

violated this article, it shall declare its findings along with any recommended 

sanctions in a report to the City Council. (b)  If the Commission determines that a 

current or former city official or employee has violated this article, it may 

recommend to the City Council a private or public reprimand, temporary 

suspension, removal from office or employment, or any other sanction or 

corrective action within the power of the City Council.  

(c)  In arriving at its recommendation, the Ethics Commission shall consider the 

seriousness of the violation, the importance of deterrence, the impact on public 

confidence in government, city officials and employees, the number of times the 

violation occurred, the mental state with which the violation was committed and 

any previous violations committed by the accused party. A written 

recommendation on the sanction to be imposed shall be forwarded by the Ethics 

Commission to the City Council, with a copy to the complainant and the accused 

party.   In addition, the Ethics Commission’s written recommendation on sanctions 

shall be delivered to the City Secretary, published in a local newspaper of the 

largest general circulation, and published prominently on the city's website for a 

minimum of twelve (12) months after the decision is issued by the Ethics 

Commission.d)  If the Ethics Commission determines that the wrongful act or 

omission occurred, but the facts indicate that the violation was unintentional and/or 

de minimis, the Ethics Commission may recommend that the complaint be 

dismissed and no sanction be imposed by the City Council. The Ethics 

Commission may, in its discretion, issue a clarifying opinion to help guide future 

cases.  

(e)  The City Council shall consider the Ethics Commission's recommended 

sanction and exercise its own judgment and discretion in determining what action, 

if any, shall be taken relating to the alleged violation.    

 (Ord. No. 2012-1, 1-10-12)  

Secs. 1.15.136—1.15.150 - Reserved. 

 

Attachment A  



 

https://www.municode.com/Library/api/CD/staticCodeContent?productId=13586&fileName=Ch1DegreesRelationship.png


Dear Manager, City Attorney, Judge, Mayor and Council, 
 
I will not be in the country for the workshop considering the Ethics Ordinance revisions.  As 
requested I am sending my notes to you for consideration.   I am using as reference the redline 
that was attached to tonight’s packet and will reference page and paragraph. 
 
Page 1 under definitions.  (1) City official - “…or employed, unless that person reports to the City 
Manager, or is employed in one of the City departments under the direction of the City 
Manager.”   If I understood Judge Duggan correctly this evening, the ethics ordinance does not 
apply to City employees who report to the City Manager.   Does the City have employees, either 
full or part time, who do not report to the City Manager?  If so who are they?    I think the public 
need to be aware of exactly who is and who is not covered by the Ethics Ordinance. 
 
Page 2, paragraph 2.   While I am glad that the specific issue of the confidentiality of Executive 
Sessions and Pending litigation have been addressed I would suggest the removal of the words 
“or permitted” in the second last line of the paragraph.  Disclosure that is required by State law is 
very clear as is a ruling by the state attorney general, or an order of a court with jurisdiction over 
the matter.  “Or permitted” is open to many interpretations by the general public but has, I 
understand,  very specific legal definitions.   Unless there is some bona fide legal or constitutional 
reason for the inclusion of the phrase I believe the ordinance will be clearer without it. 
 
Page 2 “Documents”  - I am glad to see this included and presume it includes both emails, texts, 
snap chat, twitter etc. 
 
Page 2 “Economic Interest”  - as I stated this evening, “unpaid service by a city official or employee 
as an officer, director, advisor, or otherwise active participant in a non profit entity does not create 
for that city official or employee, an economic interest in the property of the organization.”    I 
believe this is a potentially difficult area for the unfair use of influence.   For example - a City 
Council member may be in charge of fundraising for a particular non profit.  The non profit, at the 
City Council member's direction, makes an approach to the City Council for funding as part of it’s 
fundraising strategy.   That City Council member should have to disclose his/her relationship with 
the non-profit and recuse themselves from voting.   I’m not sure that the paragraph as written 
would force that to happen. 
 
Page 3 Paragraph 3 “Knowingly means an actual awareness of the impropriety of the acts or 
omissions in question at the time of the act or practice complained of.”     As phrased this definition 
would simply require an accused person to say they were not aware what they did was improper 
at the time they did it and the Commission would be forced to dismiss.   Given that there have 
been, at times, lengthy periods between Council Members taking office and receiving Ethics 
training, the opportunity for impropriety has been large.  If awareness of impropriety is the 
standard then it should be mandatory that City officials receive their Ethics training prior to officially 
being in office in order that their awareness of potential impropriety is clear from the beginning of 
their terms. 
 
Page 3 section (2) "Any unexcused failure to act etc”.     I am concerned at two things here.  First 
the removal of the second part of the sentence stating that the inaction would affect the economic 
interest of the City Official.  I don’t see why that has been removed.  Secondly the insertion of the 
word “unexcused”.  What does this mean?  How would an inaction be excused?  And by 
whom?    We don’t want hidden “get out of jail free” cards in the ordinance and without explanation 
this word seems strange. 
 



Page 3/4 Definition of Recklessly.  “The risk must be of such a nature and degree that its disregard 
constitutes a gross deviation from the standard of care that an ordinary person would exercise 
under the same or similar circumstances.”   What constitutes gross?   If undefined the word leaves 
a huge amount of latitude for various interpretations.  I believe the word gross needs to be defined 
or, failing a definition, removed. 
 
Page 4 - Section 1.15.002 - see notes earlier about defining or outlining what type of employee 
could be referred to that would be subject to the ordinance because they do not report to the City 
Manger or work in one of the Departments under the direction of the City Manager. 
 
Page 5 - Accountability of City Officials 
Mr. Bragg said the deletion of this entire section was done because it is unconstitutional.  I would 
like to know how and why it is unconstitutional.    He said that this section was covered elsewhere 
- I would like to know where in the Ethics ordinance, or the City Charter it is covered.   To simply 
remove an entire section about Accountability of City Officials without a fuller explanation leaves 
many unanswered questions.  The whole point of an Ethics Ordinance is so that the public can 
hold their City Officials accountable. 
 
Page 9 - The addition of “This provision does not prevent a person who is a city official solely 
because of his or her service on a city board, body, commission or task force from representing 
a person or entity in litigation adverse to the City so long as the litigation is not related, directly or 
indirectly to is or her duties as a city official.”    This addition seems to be designed to free up 
lawyers.  It flies in the face of reason.  People who are City Officials should not represent clients 
who are suing the city.    They have an inside track on the city, they have relationships with the 
city staff and council beyond that of the public.   I don’t understand the need to include this 
paragraph at all. 
 
Page 9 - Executive Sessions - I was glad to see this addition but a little concerned at Mr. Bragg’s 
comments about Council Members maintaining contact with litigants.  That is a very thin and tricky 
line to walk and I think Council Members would do it at their peril. 
 
Page 10 - Pending Litigation - Again I was glad to see this addition.  Can one presume that 
“pending litigation” includes ongoing cases? 
 
Page 13 2nd paragraph - the addition of “This section does not prohibit the City Council or City 
Manager from contracting with a former city official to perform consulting services for the Benefit 
of the City.”   I would like to know the reason for including this sentence.   On it’s face it seems 
open to abuse.    Under this a Mayor could leave office on a Tuesday and be employed by the 
City as a consultant on a Wednesday.   It does not seem right.    
 
Page 14 - I am glad to see the inclusion of “gender identity”. 
 
Page 15 - Regarding membership of the Ethics Commission, I was glad to hear Council Member 
Ennis’s comments on the inclusion of a clause that would prevent members of the Ethics 
Commission publicly backing political candidates or particular political positions that could be 
decided by public vote. 
 
Page 17 - While I understand the thinking behind the super majority idea it makes the selection 
of the five candidates very, very important, so that the process cannot be politicized. 
 



Page 17 - Jurisdiction of the Commission - “shall have jurisdiction over complaints involving the 
employees as defined in this ordinance” - as previously stated employees are not clearly defined. 
 
Page 19 - Role of the City Attorney. - In a case where the Ethics Commission must retain 
independent legal counsel because the City Attorney would have a conflict of interest, is the 
independent legal counsel responsible for conducting the preliminary analysis, review and 
investigation and forwarding a written report detailing the initial legal review and recommendation 
to the Ethics Commission for its evaluation and action?   It would seem counter intuitive for the 
City Attorney to have a conflict but still submit a report. 
 
Page 19 - 1.15.131 (4) b.  All documents submitted to the Ethics Commission shall be supported 
by affidavit.  What exactly does this mean?    For example, if documents are submitted that were 
the result of an Open Records Request what form of affidavit is required and from whom?   If a 
photograph is submitted what does the affidavit have to say and who should swear to it? 
 
Page 20 Paragraph (c) - Reducing the amount of time from 6 to 12 months after they knew is fair 
enough but how do you decided whether they “should have known”?   That seems extremely 
vague.  Who decides when a person “should have known”? 
 
Page 20 Section (e) - Who is responsible for ensuring that all documents filed must be served on 
all parties?  I suggest it should be the city secretary, not the complainant since the complainant 
past a certain point would not necessarily be aware if the accused party had retained counsel for 
example.   Also a failure by the City Secretary, or whomever is responsible for distributing the 
documents, should not automatically mean such documents would not be considered.  A 
complainant and an accused should have fulfilled their responsibility to the Commission and it’s 
process by submitting the paperwork to the City Secretary.  A failure by the city staff to follow 
through should not adversely affect the proper handling of the complaint. 
 
Page 21(g) - the addition of “Groundless as a matter of law” is a big problem.    As we have 
recently discovered, disclosure of the contents of an executive session was not unlawful although 
the intent of the Ethics Ordinance was to prevent such disclosure - hence the revisions to the 
Ordinance.   No violation occurred as a matter of law.   The inclusion of this provision places an 
undue burden on any complainant.   They could bring a complaint in good faith, not for the 
purposes of harassment, because they truly believe a violation has occurred and swear to that in 
an affidavit and still be held liable for any legal expenses of the accused party if the case was 
found to be groundless as a matter of law.   Essentially this means that anyone bringing a 
complaint against an official will have to have their complaint reviewed by an attorney familiar with 
municipal law, prior to submission with no hope of recovering those legal fees.  Given that the 
City Council has, as a specific matter of precedent, voted to recompense any city official’s legal 
fees in such cases this provision is unnecessary and seems designed to prevent any normal 
person from registering what they believe is a valid complaint.  Furthermore the initial review by 
the City Attorney or the special counsel should determine the legal status prior the commission 
handling the complaint.   It is really important to note that the dismissal of something as a matter 
of law does not mean that the event complained of did not happen or that damage was not 
done.   It does not necessarily mean the accused is innocent - it can mean, in criminal parlance, 
that they are getting off on a technicality.   A person who has brought a complaint in good faith 
should not be penalized financially because the accused gets off on a technicality. 
 
Page 21 Hearings - Nothing I have read in the ordinance or the revisions seems to cover the 
potential for the contents of the complaint being available to the press and the public via an ORR 
prior to an adjudication by the Commission.   I think this is a serious issue.   No un-adjudicated 



complaint should be made public prior to it being heard by the commission.  I am anxious to hear 
how the Commission and the City  intends to deal with this difficulty. 
 
Page 22 - “The Ethics Commission may find a violation whether or not there is a financial loss.” - 
What does this mean and why has it been included?   A financial loss to whom?  The 
City?   The  Accused?  The Complainant? 
 
“Evidence that there was no actual financial loss to any party as a result of the violation is not an 
excuse for a violation”.  Again what does this mean?    I do not recollect any references to financial 
loss in the previous version of the ordinance and would like to know why this has been included 
and what it is intended to cover. 
 
Page 23 (d) - If a violation occurs that was unintentional the complaint should not be 
dismissed.   The action recommended should, at the very least, include some eduction of the 
accused so that further violations would not happen.   Dismissing a case on that basis suggests 
that nothing happened.   The complainant and the public should be made aware that something 
did happen but that it was not serious and therefore no action was being taken.  Dismissal of a 
complaint should mean innocence and will certainly be interpreted that way by the accused and 
by the public.   A dismissal when there was wrongdoing, however unintentional, sends the wrong 
signal to everyone concerned. 
 
Page 23 (e) - This is tricky.   Theoretically if you have a council where the majority of members 
do not have much respect for ethics - then the good work of the Ethics Commission can result in 
absolutely no action by the council, which would undermine the whole point of the exercise. 
 
 
Someone with a more erudite and legal mind than mine may have other comments but these are 
mine.   There is nothing more important than open and ethical government.    No one wants to 
see unsubstantiated, frivolous or bad faith accusations and the ordinance should certainly protect 
city officials from that - however the ordinance should not be pitched in such a way that it is 
financially onerous for a regular citizen to report what they sincerely believe to have been 
wrongdoing, or make the bar for proving wrongdoing so high as to be unattainable.   
 
It should also be remembered that laws, codes and ordinances are constantly improved by being 
challenged and tested.  The recent testing of the Ordinance has resulted in much-needed, 
substantial revisions which will serve the citizens of Bastrop better in holding their representatives 
and officials to the high standards of behavior they deserve. 
 
Sincerely 
 
Conor McAnally 



Hello, my comments follow each section, which is copied from the revised text.  I 

can not attend meeting so I am sending you these comments. 

 

Sincerely, 

Herb Goldsmith, Bastrop Tx. 

 

 

 

 

Herb’s comment:  It does prohibit the City Manager and City Council from 

contracting via consulting services if they meet the elements of Part b 

above.  The City Manager already receives a severance package. Who 

decides whether or not it is a violation of Part b?  Also, while in office, a city 



official could impact outcomes that may steer consulting services toward 

them after termination from office.   

 

 

Herb’s comment: Gender identity and sexual orientation on both beginning 

and  #2 above.  Actually, the two should be exactly the same. 

 



Herb’s comment:  “who will”  above should be crossed out. 

 

  

 

Herb’s comments:  There should not be a vote for sustaining or dismissing 

unless at least 4 members are present.  The rule above could apply to 

other decisions needed by the commission, but only 3 are not appropriate 

for a sustaining or dismissing a case. 

 



 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE: July 11, 2017     AGENDA ITEM: 5A 
 
TITLE: 
Receive a presentation from Kevin Berry, Environmental Enforcement Investigator for Bastrop 
County, regarding Bastrop County Household Hazardous Waste Program. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
 



 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 
 
 

MEETING DATE:   July 11, 2017 AGENDA ITEM: 5B 
 
TITLE: 
Mayor’s Report 

 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 

Lynda Humble, City Manager 
 
ACTIVITIES OF MAYOR SCHROEDER SINCE THE LAST COUNCIL MEETING: 
 

 June 29th was a busy afternoon.  I started with a ribbon cutting for the Bastrop County 
Republican Party, then attended the Downtown Business Alliance Happy Hour before I 
headed to our first Budget Workshop meeting.  Several citizens attended and the City 
Manager and Staff did an excellent job of presenting the FY2018 Budget process. 

 

 June 30th – time for the Chamber’s Patriotic Festival.  As promised, I participated in the 
“Run, White and Blue 5K Glow Run.”  I know I said I would be walking, but my competitive 
streak took hold and I ran with my daughter. We were not as fast as my grandkids but we 
all enjoyed the finish line! Friends and family had a great time. 

 

 
 

 July 1- time to judge the “Pet and Pal Parade.”  Thankfully, I had help from the City 
Manager and Chief Adcock.  I got to see my first Fire Leopard Gecko! 

 

 
 

 



• The Patriotic Festival was in full swing all day Saturday - special thanks to the Chamber of 
Commerce staff and City crews that helped make the event such a success.  The Austin 
Symphonic Band and Fireworks were outstanding and everyone had a great time. 
 

• July 6 – I helped celebrate “Simply Sweet” five (5) year anniversary of being in business.  
I watched the cupcake eating contest and contributed to their video.  My favorite flavor is 
Strawberry Lemonade Cheesecake.  

 
• Farm Street Opry – My husband and I always enjoy the opry and this month was no 

different.  I was happy to see so many folks at the event that continues to grow. 
 

• On Friday, July 7, I attended the funeral for Mike Fisher.  Our thoughts and prayers are with 
his family. Mike will be missed by folks all over Bastrop County   

 
• First Friday Art Walk – We always enjoy seeing all the friends and visitors enjoying the 

evening. 

 
 
Upcoming events: 

• July 13 – Ribbon Cutting: Bastrop Financial Planning; Mitchell Hardin 
• July 14/15 – Council Retreat 

• July 17 – BEDC meeting 

• July 20 – Quarterly Community Relations Board 

             Budget Workshop 

• July 22 – Library’s Big Game Summer Finale Party 

• July 25 – Volunteer of the Year Award 

        City Council Meeting 

 

 

 



 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE:   July 11, 2017       AGENDA ITEM:  5C 
 
TITLE:   
Councilmembers’ Report 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
   



 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE:   July 11, 2017       AGENDA ITEM: 5D  
 
 
TITLE:   
City Manager’s Report 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
   



 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:  July 11, 2017      AGENDA ITEM: 7A 
 
TITLE:  
Presentation on Copper Exceedance and Public Notification 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE:  
Trey Job, Managing Director of Public Works and Leisure Services. 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY:  
The City of Bastrop received a letter from the TCEQ (Texas Commission on Environmental 
Quality) regarding a copper exceedance at one or more of our 40 sample sites. We notified the 
homeowners in April that we were within the 90th percentile. This percentile is determined by the 
TCEQ by multiplying the number of samples (40) by 90%.  Samples are in order from high to low.  
If any of the samples below number 36 are found to have a high copper level, we are required to 
send notice to the entire water system.  
 
Since that time, we have increased the polyphosphate blend we feed at the water treatment plant.  
This change will build a phosphate scale on the line to reduce corrosion on the homeowners’ side 
of the meter. The next required test is from July to September. However, in order to ensure we 
are providing appropriate water quality between State required testing dates, we took samples at 
the homes that previously had a copper exceedance level of 1.3 MG/L after we adjusted our 
process, and are now waiting on the test results. In addition, we have hired CH2M to perform 
some water quality modeling to develop proper process controls for our treatment plant operators.  
As the seasons change, the City’s water source will change as well.  These procedures will help 
us be better prepared to address such changes.   
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
The City is required to maintain its infrastructure for all utilities and is given authority to do so in 
the Local Government Code. Not only is the authority to maintain our infrastructure found in the 
Local Government Code, but it can be found in the State Water Code as well. The authority, and 
responsibility to regulate water and wastewater utilities has been given to Texas Commission on 
Environmental Quality, and all Public water systems are required to follow the rules and 
regulations. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
For presentation only.  We will be mailing out a letter, which has required language by TCEQ 
within the next few weeks.  We want to notify the public of this matter prior to receiving the letter. 
 
 



 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE:     July 11, 2017      AGENDA ITEM: 7B 
 
TITLE:  
Presentation from Organizations applying for FY2018 Community Support Funding. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Tracy Waldron, Chief Financial Officer 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The organizations applying are: 

 Austin Habitat for Humanity 

 Bastrop County Child Welfare Board 

 Bastrop County Emergency Food Pantry and Support Center 

 Bastrop County First Responder, Inc. 

 Bastrop County Long Term Recovery Team 

 Bastrop County Women’s Shelter, dba Family Crisis Center 

 Bastrop Pregnancy Resource Center 

 Capital Area Rural Transportation Center (CARTS) 

 Children’s Advocacy Center (CAC) 

 Combined Community Action (CCA) 

 Court Appointed Special Advocates (CASA) 

 The Honor Choir 

 In the Streets Hands Up High Ministry 

 Keep Bastrop County Beautiful 

 Literacy Volunteers of Bastrop 

 MEELJ Justice Center, Inc. 

 Mission U-Too 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Organizations providing charitable services to the citizens of Bastrop, that could be provided by 
the City of Bastrop, are eligible to apply for Community Support funding. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
Bastrop Power & Light Fund 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Applications 











































































































































 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE:   July 11, 2017       AGENDA ITEM:  8 
 
 
TITLE:   
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
At this time, three (3) minute comments will be taken from the audience on any topic.  To address 
the Council, please submit a fully completed request card to the City Secretary prior to the 
beginning of the Citizens’ Comment portion of the Council meeting.  In accordance with the Texas 
Open Meetings Act, if a citizen discusses any item not on the agenda, City Council cannot discuss 
issues raised or make any decision at this time.  Instead, City Council is limited to making a 
statement of specific factual information or a recitation of existing policy in response to the inquiry.   
Issues may be referred to City Staff for research and possible future action. 
 
To address the Council concerning any item on the agenda, please submit a fully completed 
request card to the City Secretary prior to the consideration of that item. 
 
It is not the intention of the City of Bastrop to provide a public forum for the embarrassment or 
demeaning of any individual or group.  Neither is it the intention of the Council to allow a member 
of the public to slur the performance, honesty and/or integrity of the Council, as a body, or any 
member or members of the Council individually or collectively, or members of the City’s staff.  
Accordingly, profane, insulting or threatening language directed toward the Council and/or any 
person in the Council’s presence will not be tolerated. 
 
 



 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE:   July 11, 2017       AGENDA ITEM:  9A 
 
TITLE:   
Consider action to approve minutes from the June 27, 2017 Regular Council Meeting. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda Humble, City Manager 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
N/A 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Section 551.021 of the Government Code provides as follows: 

(a)  A governmental body shall prepare and keep minutes or make a tape recording of 
each open meeting of the body. 

(b)  The minutes must: 
 1.  State the subject of each deliberation; and 
 2.  Indicate the vote, order, decision, or other action taken. 

 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve minutes from the June 27, 2017, Regular Council Meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 June 27, 2017 DRAFT Regular Council Meeting Minutes 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  June 27, 2017 

Page 1 of 6 

 

M I N U T E S  O F  R E G U L A R  C O U N C I L  M E E T I N G  
B A S T R O P  C I T Y  C O U N C I L  

June 27, 2017 
 

The Bastrop City Council met in a Regular Meeting on Tuesday, June 27, 2017 at 6:30 p.m. at 
the Bastrop City Hall Council Chambers, located at 1311 Chestnut Street, Bastrop, Texas.  
Members present were Mayor Schroeder, Mayor Pro Tem Schiff and Council Members Peterson, 
Nelson, Ennis and Jones.  Officers present were City Manager Lynda Humble, City Secretary Ann 
Franklin, and City Attorney David Bragg.  

 
GROUP PICTURE OF COUNCIL FOR WEBSITE (6:00 P.M.) 
 
WORK SESSION - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY TRAINING FOR COUNCIL  
 
CALL TO ORDER  
At 6:33 p.m., Mayor Schroeder called the meeting to order with a quorum being present.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

Kalleigh Kawazoe, BISD and Carlie Vinklarek Cedar Creek High School led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
TEXAS PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Honor the Texas Flag; I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and 
indivisible. 
 
INVOCATION   

Pastor Bob Long, Bastrop Christian Fellowship, gave the Invocation.  
 

5. OATH OF OFFICE 
 
5A. Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-37 to canvass Election returns and 

declare results of June 17, 2017 City of Bastrop Runoff Election. 
A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Schiff to approve Resolution No. R-2017-
37, seconded by Council Member Ennis.  Motion was approved on a 5-0 vote. 
                                                                 

5B. Incoming Council Member Lyle Nelson, Place 3 
 Swearing Oath of Office, The Honorable Chris Duggan, State District Judge, District 

423 

 Signature of Official Documents 

 Welcome by Council 

 Comments by Council Member Lyle Nelson  

 
ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 
 
11C. Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017- 39 of the City Council of the City 

of Bastrop, Texas authorizing Bastrop Art in Public Places to acquire through purchase 
four permanent sculptures, amounting to $44,500 in accordance with the City’s 
purchasing policy; and establishing an effective date.  
This item was withdrawn without objection. 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  June 27, 2017 

Page 2 of 6 

 

 
11F.   Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-43 of the City Council of the City 

of Bastrop, Texas authorizing the purchase of a parcel of land containing 1,142 square 
feet in the amount of Fourteen Thousand Two Hundred Seventy-Five Dollars and 00 
Cents ($14,275.00) situated in Building Block 4 West of Water Street, according to the 
plat of the City of Bastrop, Texas recorded in Plat Cabinet 1, Slide 23A of the Plat 
Records of Bastrop County, and being a part of that tract described as 0.107 acre in 
a deed from Violet John, et al, to Ruth Anne Smarzik and Richard Smarzik dated 
February 6, 2015 and recorded in County Clerk’s File #201501605 of the Official 
Records of Bastrop County, said Smarzik tract having originally been described in a 
deed from Jack Griesenbeck, et ux, to Mary Ogden Schultz dated June 1, 1993 and 
recorded in Volume 668, Page 552 of the Official Records of Bastrop County; granting 
the use of three (3) parking spaces for exclusive use to the building located at 925 
Main Street for a term of Ninety-Nine (99) Years unless the Building or Parking Lot is 
demolished; authorizing the City Manager to execute a purchase agreement, closing 
documents, and any document necessary to finalize the purchase of the property; 
approving a repealing clause; and establishing an effective date. 
This item was withdrawn without objection. 
 

11G. Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-44 of the City Council of the City 
of Bastrop, Texas authorizing the purchase of a parcel of land containing 1,639 square 
feet  in the amount of Twenty Thousand Four Hundred Eighty-Seven Dollars and Fifty 
Cents ($20,487.50) situated in Building Block 4 West of Water Street, according to the 
plat of the City of Bastrop, Texas recorded in Plat Cabinet 1, Slide 23A of the Plat 
Records of Bastrop County, and being a part of that tract described as 0.113 acre in 
a deed from Jack Griensenbeck, et ux, to Bastrop Chamber of Commerce dated 
November 2, 1993 and recorded in Volume 685, Page 498 of the Official Records of 
Bastrop County, said Smarzik tract having originally been described in a deed from 
Jack Griesenbeck,; granting the use of four (4) parking spaces for exclusive use to the 
building located at 927 Main Street for a term of Ninety-Nine (99) Years unless the 
Building or Parking Lot is demolished; authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
purchase agreement, closing documents, and any document necessary to finalize the 
purchase of the property; approving a repealing clause; and establishing an effective 
date. 
This item was withdrawn without objection. 

 
Mayor Schroeder recessed the Council meeting for reception at 6:43 p.m. 
 
Mayor Schroeder called the Council meeting back to order at 7:04 p.m. 
 
6. PRESENTATIONS 
 

6A. Receive a presentation from Burditt & Associates regarding the Master Plan for the 
Cultural and Heritage Trail in Bob Bryant Park developed by Bastrop Art in Public 
Places. 
Presentation was made by Diana Wilson, Project Manager and Eric Geppelt, 
Project Architect of Burditt & Associates. 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  June 27, 2017 

Page 3 of 6 

 

6B. Mayor’s Report 
 June 17, 2017, first run off election in the history of Bastrop.  

 Friday, June 23, 2017 
o attended BEDC’s coffee chat, the Ferry Park ribbon cutting, Cherry Blossom 

Spa’s 7 year anniversary party, Juneteenth Banquet.   

 Friday, June 16, 2017, attended Juneteenth banquet. 

 Saturday, June 17, 2017 
o first City float in a parade, which was the Juneteenth Parade;  
o presented the City and County Joint Emancipation Proclamation along with 

Councilmembers Peterson and Ennis and City Manager Humble to Pam 
Aldridge, Juneteenth Celebration Chair;  

o attended the Public Art Celebration, hosted by Bastrop Art in Public Places 
at the Library. 

 Attended Bastrop Rotary Luncheon, where Judge Pape was the guest speaker, and 
took a tour of the Family Crisis Center.   

 Wednesday, June 21, 2017, attended Texas Municipal League’s Quarterly Region 10 
Meeting in Hutto.   

 Summer reading program is still going on.  

 Received a letter from an attorney in El Paso who recently visited with a group of 
scouts who got themselves in a bad situation – the professional and courtesy 
manner in which the Police and Fire departments handled the matter was 
outstanding.  Special thanks to our teams!  

 
Upcoming events:  

 June 29 – Ribbon Cutting: Bastrop County Republican Party 
o Downtown Business Alliance Happy Hour 
o City Council – Budget Workshop Meeting 

 June 30 - BEST Breakfast 
o Patriotic Festival 5K 

 July 1 – Pet and Pal Parade  

 Patriotic Festival continues w/Fireworks 

 July 6 – Farm Street Opry 

 July 7 – First Friday Art Walk 

 July 11 – 5:00 Ethics Workshop/Council Meeting 

 
6C. Councilmembers’ Report 
 Council Member Peterson – Expressed thanks to the City of Bastrop, the YMCA 

and City employees for making the Juneteenth celebration a success. 
 
 Council Member Ennis – Complimented Trey Job on the City’s Juneteenth float. 
 
 Council Member Jones – Stated the Flamingo Troop was an amazing show, 

complimented Chester Eitze for his years of dedicated service to the Bastrop 
Opera House and a “Thank You” to David Bragg for bringing the Flamingo Troop 
to town. 

 
6D. City Manager’s Report 

City Manager Humble yielded time to the City Attorney. 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  June 27, 2017 

Page 4 of 6 

 

City Attorney David Bragg announced that Chester Eitze of the Bastrop Opera 
House was being awarded the American Association of Community Theatre 
Award. 

 
7. WORK SESSION/BRIEFINGS 
 
7A. Discuss Communications Plan in the event of a High-Water Event 
 Presentation was made by Planning and Engineering Director, Wesley Brandon;  

Director of Public Works, Parks & Utilities, Trey Job; and Public Safety 
Director/Chief of Police Steve Adcock. 

 
8. STAFF AND BOARD REPORTS 
 

8A. Receive presentation on the unaudited monthly Financial Report for the period ending 
May 31, 2017. 
Presentation was made by Chief Financial Officer Tracy Waldron. 
 

9. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

 R.B. Phelps – Would like to have City staff look at Renegade Road and Lake area due to 
existing problems. 

  
CONSENT AGENDA  
 
A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Schiff to approve items 10A, 10B and 10C listed on 
the consent agenda after being read into the record by City Secretary Ann Franklin.  
Seconded by Council Member Peterson, motion was approved on a 5-0 vote.   
 

10A. Consider action to approve minutes from the June 13, 2017 meeting. 
 
10B. Consider action to approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 2017-17 granting a 

Conditional Use Permit to allow a manufactured home at 1103 Cedar Street, being 
0.289 acres of Building Block 20, East of Main Street, setting out conditions; and 
establishing an effective date. 

 
10C.   Consider action to approve Resolution R-2017-40 of the City Council of Bastrop Texas 

Terminating the Land Lease Agreement with the Bastrop County dated February 17, 
2017, and authorize the City Manager to enter into a Land Lease Agreement with 
Bastrop County for property in the City’s Mayfest Park upon the County receiving 
authorization from the Texas General Land Office to use grant funds for a Community 
Center to be built by Bastrop County; Carolyn Dill, Mike Fisher; and establishing an 
effective date.  

 
11. ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION CONTINUED 
 

11A. Receive update on Phase 1 of the Culinary Arts District and Culinary District process 
and consider action to approve Resolution R-2017-38 of the City Council of the City 
of Bastrop, Texas authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract for Phase 2 
Professional Services with Cygnet Strategies utilizing existing FY 2017 budgeted 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  June 27, 2017 

Page 5 of 6 

 

Tourism Promotions dollars in accordance with the City’s purchasing policy; and 
establishing an effective date. 
Presentation was made by Main Street Director, Sarah O’Brien. 
 
A motion was made by Council Member Ennis to approve Resolution No. R-
2017-38, seconded by Council Member Peterson. Motion was approved on a 5-
0 vote.   
 

11B. Consider action to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 2017-18 of the City 
Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas amending the Code of Ordinances by amending 
Section 9.09.041 (Emergency, Fire, and Rescue Services) authorizing the Bastrop 
Fire Department to seek reimbursement of costs of certain emergency, fire and rescue 
services; approving a repealing clause; and establishing an effective date, and move 
to include on the July 11, 2017 agenda for a second reading. 
Presentation was made by Public Safety Director/Chief of Police Steve Adcock. 
 
A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Schiff to approve the first reading of 
Ordinance No. R-2017-18, seconded by Council Member Jones. Motion was 
approved on a 5-0 vote. 
 

11D. Consider action to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 2017–15 of the City 
Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas amending the Code of Ordinances by amending 
Article 4.03 (taxicabs, shuttles and touring vehicles) providing the requirements of 
operating a taxicab, shuttles and touring vehicles and designating the City Manager 
or his or her designee to enforce all requirements; approving a repealing clause; 
establishing an effective date and move to include on the July 11, 2017, agenda for a 
second reading. 
Presentation was made by Public Safety Director/Chief of Police Steve Adcock. 
 
A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Schiff to approve the first reading of 
Ordinance No. R-2017-15, seconded by Peterson. Motion was approved on a 5-
0 vote. 
 

Items 11E and 11H were acted on in a combined motion. 
 
11E. Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-42 of the City Council of the City 

of Bastrop, Texas authorizing the purchase of a parcel of land containing 1,663 square 
feet  in the amount of Twenty Thousand Seven Hundred Eighty-Seven Dollars and 
Fifty Cents ($20,787.50) situated in Building Block 4 West of Water Street, according 
to the plat of the City of Bastrop, Texas recorded in Plat Cabinet 1, Slide 23A of the 
Plat Records of Bastrop County, and being a part of that tract described as 0.352 acre 
in a deed from Clyde Stephens to Kenneth Cruise dated December 3, 2003 and 
recorded in Volume 1390, Page 956 of the Official Records of Bastrop County; 
granting the use of three (3) parking spaces for exclusive use to the building located 
at 919 Main Street for a term of Ninety-Nine (99) Years unless the Building or Parking 
Lot is demolished; authorizing the City Manager to execute a purchase agreement, 
closing documents, and any document necessary to finalize the purchase of the 
property; approving a repealing clause; and establishing an effective date. 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  June 27, 2017 

Page 6 of 6 

 

11H. Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-45 of the City Council of the City of 
Bastrop, Texas authorizing the purchase of land containing 454 square feet from Chestnut 
Street  LTD situated in Building Block 4 West of Water Street, according to the plat of the 
City of Bastrop, Texas recorded in Plat Cabinet 1, Slide 23A of the Plat Records of Bastrop 
County, and being a the residual of that tract reserved to T. A. Hasler, et ux, to Maggie 
Olive dated September 28, 1908 and recorded in Volume 44, Page 63 of the Official 
Records of Bastrop County; granting the use of one (1) parking space for exclusive use to 
the building located at 707 Chestnut Street for a term of Ninety-Nine (99) Years unless the 
Building or Parking Lot is demolished; authorizing the City Manager to execute a purchase 
agreement, closing documents, and any document necessary to finalize the purchase of 
the property; approving a repealing clause; and establishing an effective date. 

Presentation was made by Director of Public Works, Parks & Utilities, Trey Job. 
 
A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Schiff to approve Resolution No. R-2017-
42 and R-2017-15, seconded by Council Member Peterson. Motion was approved 
on a 4-0 vote.  Council Member Jones recused herself. 
 

11I. Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-41 of the City Council of the City 
of Bastrop, Texas confirming all board and commission appointments of the Mayor, 
as required in Section 3.08 of the City’s Charter, as outlined in Exhibit A; and 
establishing an effective date. 
A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Schiff to approve the amended 
Resolution No. R-2017- 41, seconded by Council Member Ennis. Motion was 
approved on a 5-0 vote.  The amendment to the resolution was to remove 
Richard Kindred from consideration for Place 3 at his request and move Sam 
Kier from Place 1 and Place 3.  
 

12.  EXECUTIVE SESSION - NONE 
 
13. TAKE ANY NECESSARY OR APPROPRIATE ACTION ON MATTERS POSTED FOR 

CONSIDERATION IN CLOSED/EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
 Not Applicable. 
 
14. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Schiff made the motion to adjourn the meeting at 9:18 p.m., seconded by 
Council Member Peterson.  The motion was approved on a 5-0 vote.   

APPROVED:       ATTEST: 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 
       Mayor Connie B. Schroeder    City Secretary Ann Franklin 
 

 
 
  



 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE: July 11, 2017      AGENDA ITEM: 9B 
 
TITLE: 
Consider action to approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 2017-18 of the City Council of 
the City of Bastrop, Texas amending the Code of Ordinances by amending Section 9.09.041 
(Emergency, Fire, and Rescue Services) authorizing the Bastrop Fire Department to seek 
reimbursement of costs of certain emergency, fire and rescue services; approving a repealing 
clause; and establishing an effective date. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Steve Adcock, Public Safety Director 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The ordinance needs to be updated to make the necessary corrections now that the fire 
department is a city department. 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
The changes to this ordinance center around updating the ordinance now that the fire department 
is a city department. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 2017-18 of the City Council of 
the City of Bastrop, Texas amending the Code of Ordinances by amending Section 9.09.041 
(Emergency, Fire, and Rescue Services) authorizing the Bastrop Fire Department to seek 
reimbursement of costs of certain emergency, fire and rescue services; approving a repealing 
clause; and establishing an effective date. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Ordinance 

 Red-lined version of Ordinance 



1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2017-18 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 
AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING SECTION 9.09.041 
(EMERGENCY, FIRE, AND RESCUE SERVICES) AUTHORIZING THE 
BASTROP FIRE DEPARTMENT TO SEEK REIMBURSEMENT OF COSTS OF 
CERTAIN EMERGENCY, FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICES; APPROVING A 
REPEALING CLAUSE; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, The Bastrop Fire Department (“BFD”) provides fire suppression, 
emergency, and rescue services for the City of Bastrop.  

WHEREAS, The BFD is equipped with and utilizes certain apparatus, emergency 
tools, equipment, and materials as a means of saving lives and property; and  

WHEREAS, The purchase of said tools, equipment, and materials is a significant 
expense for the City of Bastrop; and  

WHEREAS, The BFD has requested that the City Council of the City of Bastrop 
approve a plan by which the BFD may seek to recover certain costs expended by the BFD 
to provide fire suppression, emergency and rescue services to persons and entities 
located within The Bastrop Fire Department service area; and 

WHEREAS, The Council has determined that it is protective of the health and 
welfare of the Citizens of the City to have BFD service beneficiaries pay a fair and 
reasonable share of the cost incurred by the BFD related to items such as, but not limited 
to: (1) wear and tear of apparatus, tools, and equipment, (2) materials used during the 
provision of services, and (3) specialized training provided to the firefighters of the BFD.  

WHEREAS, The City Council has evaluated the proposed Fee Recovery 
Schedule, provided and proposed by the BFD for various BFD services; and 

WHEREAS,  The BFD has reported to the Council that many persons or entities 
requiring BFD emergency services have insurance to cover the costs associated with such 
the provision of services by the BFD, as set forth herein.   

  



2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BASTROP, TEXAS: 

Section 1:  That Division 5 of Article 9.09.041, Emergency, Fire, and Rescue 
Services of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Bastrop, Texas, is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 

Sec. 9.09.041 – EMERGENCY, FIRE, AND RESCUE SERVICES 

DIVISION 5. – GENERALLY 

Sec.9.09.041 – Emergency, Fire, and Rescue Services 

… 

Section 2; changes to read as follows 

BFD Fees and Charges shall be collected for services provided inside the City Limits 
as set forth … 

…documentation for collection of Fees and Charges, by the BFD.  

… 

Section 4; changes to read as follows 

Residents of the City of Bastrop are hereby exempted from the BFD Fees and 
Charges…  

… 

Section 8; entire section deleted and replaced with section 9 moving to section 8 
and reading as follows 

The BFD shall remit to the City’s Finance Department the fees collected pursuant… 

Section 9; section 10 moved to section 9  

Section 10; section 11 moved to section 10 

Section 11; section 12 moved to section 11 
 

Section 2:  That all ordinances of the City of Bastrop, Texas in conflict with the 
provisions of this ordinance be and the same are hereby repealed and all other ordinances 
of the City of Bastrop, Texas not in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance shall 
remain in full force and effect. 

Section 3:  That should any sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or 
section of this ordinance be adjudged or held to be unconstitutional, illegal or invalid, the 



3 

same shall not affect the validity of this ordinance as a whole, or any part or provision 
hereof other than the part so decided to be invalid, illegal or unconstitutional, and shall not 
affect the validity of the Code of Ordinance as a whole.  

Section 4:  This ordinance shall take effect from and after its passage and the 
publication of the caption as the law and Charter in such cases provide. 

 
 
READ and ACKNOWLEDGED on First Reading on the 27th day of June, 2017.  
 
READ and ADOPTED on Second Reading on the 11th day of July, 2017.  
 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 

________________________________ 
Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________ 
David F. Bragg, City Attorney 
  



4 

EXHIBIT A 

ITEMS TO BE BILLED PER HOUR**  

**The minimum charge for any item on this list is one (1) hour, and for 
any additional hours or portion thereof, the charge will be prorated 
accordingly.  

Unit of Measure  Apparatus  Price per Hour**  

Per Engine  Class A Engine  $500.00  

Per Aerial  Aerial  $500.00  

Per Rescue unit  Rescue (Heavy)  $600.00  

Per Brush unit  Brush Truck  $400.00  

Per Command unit  Command Car/Truck  $200.00  

Per PPV fan  PPV Fan  $55.00  

Per Generator  Generator, Portable  $55.00  

Per Generator  Generator  $55.00  

Per Saw  Chain Saw  $45.00  

Per Pump  Portable Pump  $95.00  

Per Pump  Float Pump  $65.00  

FIRE EQUIPMENT  

Tool  Price  
Unit of 

Measurement  

Foam Nozzle  $55.00  Per Incident  

Foam Eductor  $50.00  Per Incident  

AFFF Foam  $40.00  Per Gallon  

Class A Foam  $25.00  Per Gallon  

Piercing Nozzle  $40.00  Per Incident  

M/S Fog Nozzle  $55.00  Per Incident  

M/S Straight Bore Nozzle  $30.00  Per Incident  

Salvage Cover  $28.00  Each Used  

SCBA Pack  $85.00  Each Used  

Hall Runner  $18.00  Per Incident  

Portable Tank  $75.00  Per incident  

Water Extinguisher  $22.00  Per Incident  

Dry Chemical Extinguisher  $45.00  Per Incident  

CO2 Extinguisher  $45.00  Per Incident  



5 

Scene Lights  $22.00  Each Used  

Water Vests  $30.00  Each Used  

Thermal Imaging Camera  $75.00  Per Incident  

   

Sawzall  $55.00  Per Incident  

HAZARDOUS MATERIAL EQUIPMENT  

Supplies/Service  Price  
Unit of 

Measurement  

Absorbent  $17.00  Per Bag  

Absorbent Booms  $40.00  Each Used  

Top Sol  $35.00  Each Used  

Disposable Coveralls  $30.00  Each Used  

Neoprene Gloves  $20.00  Each Used  

Latex Gloves  $6.00  Each Used  

Over Boots  $25.00  Each Used  

Disposable Goggles  $15.00  Each Used  

Gas Plug Kit  $50.00  Each Used  

Plug and Dike  $65.00  Each Used  

Drum Liners  $10.00  Each Used  

Barricade Tape  $22.00  Each Used  

Poly Sheeting  $55.00  Each Used  

Removal of Hazardous Material  $150.00  Per Incident  

Disposal of Hazardous Material  $150.00  Per Incident  

Gas Multi Meter  $65.00  Per Incident  

CO2 Meter  $65.00  Per incident  

   

Microblaze  $10.00  Per Quart  

Microblaze  $150.00  Per 5 Gallons  

RESCUE EQUIPMENT  

Tool  Price  
Unit of 

Measurement  

Spreaders  $250.00  Per Incident  

Cutters  $250.00  Per incident  

Rams  $250.00  Per Incident  

Air Bags  $250.00  Per Incident   



6 

K-12 Saw  $55.00  Per Incident  

Target Saw  $55.00  Per Incident  

Ajax Tool  $25.00  Per Incident  

K-Tool  $25.00  Per Incident  

Windshield Tool  $15.00  Per incident  

Rescue Blanket  $32.00  Each Used  

Rope  $25.00  Each Used  

Collision Investigation Fee (to be charged in responses where no mitigation 
services, debris removal, or rescue services are performed), $275.00  

 

 

 



SECTION 1:  That the City of Bastrop recognizes and supports the right/need of the BFD 
to recover certain costs incurred by it as a result of its provision of fire suppression, 
emergency and rescue services.  Such fees for BFD services shall be related to items 
such as, but not limited to: (1) wear and tear of apparatus, tools, and equipment, (2) 
materials used during the provision of services, and (3) specialized training provided to 
the firefighters of the BFD to update training and enhance BFD services. (“Fees and 
Charges”) 

SECTION 2:  BFD Fees and Charges shall be collected for services provided inside the 
City Limits as well as those provided outside the City Limits of Bastrop, as set forth in 
detail in Exhibit A, attached hereto, and as amended by the Council, from time to time. 
The Administrative personnel of the BFD shall utilize applicable incident report 
information, which t will be used as documentation for collection of Fees and Charges, by 
the City’s BFD’s.  

SECTION 3: The BFD, or its authorized agent, shall submit an invoice to the applicable 
insurance company covering the losses and damages that are related to the BFD’s 
emergency services rendered. If it can be reliably determined that there is no insurance 
coverage for a specific event/loss which causes the BFD to incur loss, damage, and wear 
and tear to apparatus, tools, equipment, and materials, then the BFD may seek 
reimbursement from the person(s) or entities that received emergency services from the 
BFD.  

SECTION 4: Residents of the City of Bastrop who have no insurance coverage for the 
incident(s) connected to receiving emergency services rendered by the BFD are hereby 
exempted from the BFD Fees and Charges contained herein, unless it is determined that 
the BFD emergency services rendered were necessary as a direct result of negligent 
and/or malicious act(s) and/or omissions, on the part of the recipients of the BFD services. 
Property used for commercial, retail, industrial and/or other non-residential purposes shall 
not be eligible for any exemption from payment of the BFD Fees and Charges, as stated 
herein if, the Fire Chief, determines that the facility involved in the emergency services 
provided by the BFD did not have properly installed and/or functioning fire alarms and/or 
fire suppression equipment and systems.    

SECTION 5: BFD shall not seek reimbursement for BFD services provided to residential 
structures fires within the City’s corporate limits, unless it is determined that the fire 
fighting services rendered by BFD were a direct result of negligent, malicious act(s) and/or 
omission, on the part of the property owners/residents.  This ‘residential exclusion’ does 
not apply to multifamily residential units that provide housing to more than two families, 
i.e., having more than two separate residential units. 

SECTION 6: First Responder/Medical Assist calls to residences, (i.e., not involving a 
motor vehicle), that are located within the City’s corporate limits are hereby exempted 
from the BFD Fees and Charges, unless it is determined that the emergency services 
rendered were a direct result of negligent, malicious act(s) and/or omissions, on the part 
of persons receiving the treatment.  



SECTION 7:  In December of each year that this Ordinance is in effect, the Fire Chief 
shall prepare a summary report of the BFD’s collections and assessments as per this 
Ordinance, and shall submit it to the City Manager.  The City Manager shall forward the 
report to the City Council for its review, consideration and comment, during a City Council 
meeting.  

SECTION 8:  BFD’s allocation of fees collected, shall be proportional as between the City 
and the BFD, and the division of same shall be based upon the ownership of the 
equipment used by the BFD on the call that generates the fee.   

SECTION 98:  The BFD shall remit to the City’s Finance Department the City’s portion of 
Fees collected pursuant to this Ordinance, by the 15th of each applicable month, along 
with documentation used by the BFD in determining the City’s portion of Fees collected.  

SECTION 109: All City Ordinances or parts of Ordinances that are in conflict with the 
provisions set forth in this Ordinance are hereby repealed, and no longer have nor shall 
they be given any force or effect.  

SECTION 1110:  If any provision of this Ordinance or application thereof to any person(s) 
or circumstance(s) shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other 
provisions, or application thereof, so long as the remaining, non-conflicting provisions 
may be given effect  

SECTION 1211:  This Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of final passage noted 
below, or when all applicable hearing and publication requirements, if any, are satisfied 
in accordance with the City’s Charter, Code of Ordinances, and the laws of State of Texas. 
 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold, Font color: Red, Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Font color: Red,

Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Font color: Red,

Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Superscript

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: 7

Deleted: 8

Deleted: 9



 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE: July 11, 2017      AGENDA ITEM: 9C 
 
TITLE: 
Consider action to approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 2017–15 of the City Council of 

the City of Bastrop, Texas amending the Code of Ordinances by amending Article 4.03 (taxicabs, 

shuttles and touring vehicles) providing the requirements of operating a taxicab, shuttles and 

touring vehicles and designating the City Manager or his or her designee to enforce all 

requirements; approving a repealing clause; and establishing an effective date.  

STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Steve Adcock, Public Safety Director 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
Staff has received several calls on this ordinance and the interpretation of it.  Staff agrees that 
the ordinance should be updated and clarified.  
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
The changes to this ordinance center around who must comply with this ordinance, the 
requirements to be issued a permit and give authority to the City Manager or his/her designee. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 2017–15 of the City Council of 

the City of Bastrop, Texas amending the Code of Ordinances by amending Article 4.03 (taxicabs, 

shuttles and touring vehicles) providing the requirements of operating a taxicab, shuttles and 

touring vehicles and designating the City Manager or his or her designee to enforce all 

requirements; approving a repealing clause; and establishing an effective date.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
Final version of Ordinance 4.03 
Power point presentation  



 

 

  Page 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2017 - 15 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS, AMENDING THE CODE 
OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING ARTICLE 4.03 (TAXICABS, SHUTTLES AND 
TOURING VEHICLES) PROVIDING THE REQUIREMENTS OF OPERATING A 
TAXICAB AND DESIGNATING THE CITY MANAGER OR HIS OR HER 
DESIGNEE TO ENFORCE ALL REQUIREMENTS; APPROVING A REPEALING 
CLAUSE; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council is charged with the regulation of taxicabs, shuttles and 

touring vehicles; and 
 

WHEREAS, The City Council has appointed the City Manager as the Chief Administrative 
Officer of the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Manager is responsible for the proper administration of all affairs of 

the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The responsibility to regulate and monitor the taxicabs, shuttles and touring 
vehicles is essential for the safety and wellbeing of our community; and  
 
           NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BASTROP, TEXAS: 

 
Section 1:  That Division 1 of Article 4.03, Taxicabs, Shuttles, and Touring Vehicles of 

the Code of Ordinances of the City of Bastrop, Texas, is hereby amended to read as follows: 
ARTICLE 4.03 - TAXICABS, SHUTTLES AND TOURING VEHICLES 

DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY 

Sec. 4.03.001 - License required; exemptions. 

 Section (a); changes to read as follows 

Delete (a)(1) and move (a)(2) to (a)(1) and (a)(3) to (a)(2). Add (a)(3) to read as follows: 
A transportation network company prearranging a ride through the entity’s digital network.  
A transportation network company and a digital network have the same meaning as 
defined in Chapter 2402 Occupations Code. 

 
Section (b); changes to read as follows 

         Determination of fitness of applicant. Before the City Secretary issues an annual license 
to an applicant for a taxi, shuttle, or touring vehicle, the City Manager or his/her designee, 
after consulting with applicable staff and directors, shall first determine the applicant is fit, 
able, and willing to perform the proposed service. If the City Manager or his/her designee 
finds that the applicant is not fit, able and willing to perform the service the City Manager 
or his/her designee shall notify the applicant in writing that the application has been 
rejected. The applicant may, within ten (10) days after written notice of the decision of the 
City Manager or his/her designee, appeal the decision to the City Council.  

… 

Section (c) (8); changes to read as follows 



 

 

  Page 2 

… shall be provided to the City Manager or his/her designee. Thereafter, the City Manager 
or his/her designee shall identify …  
 
Section (d); changes to read as follows  
… The City Manager or his/her designee may require a license holder to obtain additional 
insurance depending on the service to be provided, the type of event and the number of 
people to be transported. In accord with this section, the City Manager or his/her designee 
…  
 
Section (e)(4); delete 
 

Sec. 4.03.002 - Vehicle operation requirements. 
 

Section (b); changes to read as follows 
… For good cause, at any time, the City Manager or his/her designee shall have the     
discretion…  

 
Section (f) changes to read as follows 
No person may drive any taxicab, shuttle or touring vehicle in the city: (1) for one year if 
convicted of two or more moving traffic violations or one or more chargeable motor vehicle 
accidents in the preceding 12 months, (2) for three years from the date of conviction of a 
class B misdemeanor, (3) for five years from the date of a conviction of any class A 
misdemeanor, (4) indefinitely for any felony conviction.  It should be noted that probated 
or deferred adjudication is considered a conviction. 
 
Section (h); changes to read as follows 
  … the licensee shall contact the City Manager or his/her designee to determine 
appropriate access. 
 
Section (I); added section I 
All taxicabs, shuttles, and touring vehicles shall have, affixed to the front left windshield, a 
valid permit issued by the City while in operation. 

 
Sec. 4.03.003 - Inspection of vehicles. 

 
Section 4.03.003; changes to read as follows 
The City Manager or his/her designee, may cause inspections ... Vehicles failing such 
random city inspections shall not be allowed to operate on city streets or alleys until 
brought into a condition satisfactory to the City Manager or his/her designee.  

 
Sec. 4.03.006 - Restrictions on operation of taxicabs. 

Section 4.03.006 (c); delete (c) and move (d) up to (c) 
   
Sec. 4.03.007 - Restriction on shuttle operations. 

 
  Section 4.03.007 (a) changes to read as follows 

In the event … shall provide to the City Manager or his/her designee the routes … 
 

Sec. 4.03.031 - Additional requirements. 



 

 

  Page 3 

Section 4.03.031 (3) changes to read as follows 

The applicant has agreed to operate only on a schedule and route and over the 
designated traffic lanes approved by the City Manager or his/her designee … 

 
Sec. 4.03.032 - Termination of license. 

 
Section 4.03.032; changes to read as follows 
  … notice and hearing before the City Manager or his/her designee.  

 
Section 2:  That all ordinances of the City of Bastrop, Texas in conflict with the 

provisions of this ordinance be and the same are hereby repealed and all other ordinances of the 
City of Bastrop, Texas not in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force 
and effect. 

 
Section 3:  That an offense committed before the effective date of this ordinance is 

governed by the prior law and the provisions of the Code of Ordinances, as amended, in effect 
when the offense was committed and the former law is continued in effect for this purpose. 

 
Section 4:  That should any sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or section 

of this ordinance be adjudged or held to be unconstitutional, illegal or invalid, the same shall not 
affect the validity of this ordinance as a whole, or any part or provision hereof other than the part 
so decided to be invalid, illegal or unconstitutional, and shall not affect the validity of the Code of 
Ordinance as a whole.  

 
Section 5:  This ordinance shall take effect from and after its passage and the publication 

of the caption as the law and Charter in such cases provide. 
 

READ and ACKNOWLEDGED on First Reading on the 13th day of June 2017. 
 
READ and APPROVED on the Second Reading on the 27rd day of June 2017. 
 
 
     APPROVED: 
 
 
     ___________________________  
                Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ 
David F. Bragg, City Attorney 



City of Bastrop Ordinance

Section 4.03 Taxicabs, Shuttles and Touring Vehicles

Suggested Changes to Ordinance for Council 

Consideration as discussed at April 25
th

Work Session 



City of Bastrop Ordinance

Section 4.03.001 – License required; exemptions

Current Ordinance:

Exempt from ordinance “if temporarily 
in the city and having their operating 
base outside of the city.”

Proposed Change:

Delete Section 4.03.001 (a) (1) to 
require anyone operating inside the 
city to comply with this ordinance.

Policy consideration:  

This change would close the loophole of someone operating inside the city that
may not be qualified to drive our citizens or visitors around. An example would
be if someone lives in the county and uses that address as their operating base.
They could use drivers that would not normally be allowed if they were required
to follow the city ordinance. The City of Austin requires ALL drivers to be
registered with the City, regardless of home base, for this reason.



City of Bastrop Ordinance

Section 4.03.001 – License required; exemptions

Current Ordinance: Proposed Change:

Add (3) A transportation network 
company prearranging a ride through 
the entity’s digital network.  A 
transportation network company and 
a digital network have the same 
meaning as defined in Chapter 2402 
Occupations Code.

Policy consideration:  

With HB 100 signed into law this legislation, adding this exemption would keep
the City in compliance with the new law. A municipality is not allowed by law to
regulate a transportation network company (Uber) that prearranges a ride
through a digital network.



City of Bastrop Ordinance

Section 4.03 

Consistent identification of staff responsible for enforcement

Current Ordinance:

Most places in the ordinance refers to 
the City Manager and some places 
refer to the Chief of Police

Proposed Change:

Clean the language up to refer to the 
City Manager or his/her designee

Policy consideration:  

This change will make the ordinance more uniform throughout and always refer
to the City Manager or his/her designee. It will also be less confusing to the
customer.



City of Bastrop Ordinance

Section 4.03.001 (e) (4) – Standards for Vehicles

Current Ordinance:

Each vehicle shall have permanently 
affixed to the front doors lettering at 
least 2 ½ inches high designating it as 
a taxicab, shuttle or touring vehicle
and identifying the licensee.

Proposed Change:

Add the word magnetically to read 
“Each vehicle shall have permanently 
or magnetically affixed to the front 
doors…”

Policy consideration:  

By allowing a taxicab to use a magnetic sign it would solve the issues of a
personally owned vehicle not having a permanent sign on the vehicle when off
duty.



City of Bastrop Ordinance

Section 4.03.002 (f) – Vehicle Operation Requirements

Current Ordinance:

No person may drive any 
taxicab, shuttle or touring 
vehicle if he or she has been 
convicted of any alcohol or 
drug offense that could affect 
his ability, capacity, or fitness 
required to perform the duties 
or poses a threat to public 
health safety and welfare.

Proposed Change:

No person may drive any taxicab, shuttle or touring vehicle in 
the city:  (1) for one year if convicted of two or more moving 
traffic violations or one or more chargeable motor vehicle 
accidents in the preceding 12 months, (2) for three years 
from the date of conviction of a class B misdemeanor, (3) for 
five years from the date of a conviction of any class A 
misdemeanor, (4) indefinitely for any felony conviction.  It 
should be noted that probated or deferred adjudication is 
considered a conviction.

Policy consideration:  

The current ordinance does not give ANY grace to the age of a conviction for some violations. By
making the proposed changes, it clearly defines a period of time more appropriate for each class
of conviction and allows for people to not be unduly punished for the rest of their life.



City of Bastrop Ordinance

Section 4.03.002 – Vehicle Operation Requirements

Current Ordinance:

Replaces language deleted from 
Section 4.03.001 (e) (4) as permanent 
lettering 

Proposed Change:

Add (I) to this section: “All taxicabs, 
shuttles, and touring vehicles shall 
have affixed to the front left 
windshield a valid permit issued by the 
City while in operation.”

Policy consideration:  

Staff will come up with a solution that meets this proposed requirement, so law
enforcement will be able to identify an authorized taxicab, shuttle or touring
vehicle.



City of Bastrop Ordinance

Section 4.03.002 (c) – Restrictions on Operation of Taxicabs

Current Ordinance:

It shall be the duty of every taxicab operated in the City to 
render ad valorem taxes to the City all vehicles or other 
equipment used in such business. Failure to render for and 
pay such ad valorem taxes to the City before they become 
delinquent shall operate as a revocation of any license 
authorizing the operating of any taxicab over the public 
streets, alleys, and ways of the City.

Proposed Change:

Delete Section 
4.03.006 (c)

Policy consideration:  

After researching this section, current laws are already in place that control ad
valorem tax. Therefore, this section is no longer needed.



 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE:   July 11, 2017       AGENDA ITEM: 9D 
 
 
TITLE:   
Consider action to approve Resolution R-2017-48 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas 
awarding a contract for hydrogeologic consulting services of Simsboro Well Number One (1) to 
the Thornhill Group, Incorporated in the amount of Fifty-Seven Thousand Five Hundred Dollars 
and 00 Cents ($57,500.00); authorizing the City Manager to execute necessary documents; 
providing a severability clause; and establishing an effective date. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Trey Job, Director, Public Works, Parks & Utilities  
   
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The City of Bastrop began developing a long-term water supply in 2013. The City was issued a 
permit in October, 2016, to withdraw 2,000 acre feet of water at a rate of 1,500 gallons per minute 
from the Simsboro Aquifer. 
 
The primary objectives of the proposed Work include: 

 Compiling a list of water wells designated for monitoring per the Special Conditions of the 
Operation Permit granted by LPGCD and per all agreements between parties; 

 Verifying local hydrogeologic conditions and completion details of proposed monitoring 
wells to delineate which wells are completed in the Simsboro Aaquifer as compared to 
other water-bearing zones; 

 Conducting a field inventory of designated wells to assess access and suitability for 
monitoring, including needs for conducting any downhole video inspection and properly 
equipping the wells to enable sufficient monitoring before, during, and after testing the 
required 36-hour production test; 

 Implementing and executing an effective monitoring program to collect sufficient 
background data, and to ensure comprehensive monitoring during the production test; 
and, 

 Conducting hydraulic and hydrogeologic assessments based on the background and 
production testing monitoring to develop a scientific basis for determining “..proof of 
material impact caused by pumping from Well No. 1…” per the terms of in the Special 
Conditions of the Operating Permit. 

 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
This contract is required as part of the Special Conditions of our operating permit issued by the 
Lost Pines Groundwater Conservation District. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 



 

The funds were allocated in the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 as part of a bond issuance to complete 
the well located at XS Ranch.. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-48 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas, authorizing the City Manager to execute an agreement for $57,500 to the Thornhill Group, 
Inc. to conduct a monitoring program relating to production testing of the City’s Simsboro Well 
No. 1, and establishing an effective date. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Resolution 



1 

 

 
RESOLUTION NO. R-2017-48 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 
AWARDING A CONTRACT FOR HYDROGEOLOGIC CONSULTING SERVICES 
OF SIMSBORO WELL NUMBER ONE (1) TO THE THORNHILL GROUP, 
INCORPORATED IN THE AMOUNT OF FIFTY-SEVEN THOUSAND FIVE 
HUNDRED DOLLARS AND 00 CENTS ($57,500.00); AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE NECESSARY DOCUMENTS; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council has appointed the City Manager as the Chief Administrative 

Officer of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, The City Manager is responsible for the proper administration of all affairs of 
the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, The City Council approved the proposal for the implementation of a 
monitoring program to secure an adequate water supply, and maintain the health and safety of 
our community; and 
 

WHEREAS, The City Council has the steadfastness to ensure a quality water source is 
developed for future generations; and   
 

WHEREAS, The City of Bastrop has received all bids, and found the lowest responsible 
bidder to be qualified. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BASTROP, TEXAS: 

 
Section 1: That the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a contract for the 

monitoring of Simsboro Well No. 1 and all ancillary components in the amount of $57.500.00.   
 

Section 2:  That the City Council of the City of Bastrop has found Thornhill Group, Inc. 
to be a subject matter expert in the field of hydrogeologic monitoring. 
 

Section 3: All orders, ordinances, and resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in 
conflict or inconsistent with any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of 
such conflict, and the provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the 
matters resolved herein. 
  

Section 4:  That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 

 

 
 

DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Bastrop this 
11th day of July, 2017. 
 
       
 
 
      ____________________________________ 

Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       
David F. Bragg, City Attorney 
 
 























 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE:  July 11, 2017      AGENDA ITEM:  10A 
 
TITLE: 
Consider action to approve Resolution R-2017- 46 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas 
authorizing Bastrop Art in Public Places to acquire through purchase five (5) permanent 
sculptures, amounting to $50,400 in accordance with the City’s purchasing policy.  
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Sarah O’Brien, Main Street Program Director 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
On June 7th, Bastrop Art in Public Places approved recommending the purchase of the following 
sculptures: 

1. “Night Song” by John Maisano- $14,000 
2. “Rising from the Ashes” by Anthony St. James-$4,000 
3. “A Mother’s Love” by Jay Schaan for $5,400 
4. “Sitatunga” by Dan Pogue- $14,500 
5.  “A Scarlet Heart” by Alex Porter for $12,500 

 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Bastrop Art in Public Place’s bylaws state:  
 
Article 1.3: The purpose of Bastrop Art in Public Places is to expand the enjoyment, access, and 
appreciation of art in Bastrop, Texas.  This includes assisting the Bastrop City Council in 
developing guidelines and standards for the selection, display, and maintenance of in the City 
and to acquire by purchase or donation, works of art for display. 
 
Article 4.1 Art Ownership: 

Article 4.1a   Works of art acquired in whole or in part by the City of Bastrop with the assistance 
of the BAIPP shall be acquired in the name and under the ownership of the City of Bastrop. 

 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
Bastrop Art in Public Places budgeted $55,000 during FY 17 for the purchase of permanent art to 
be added to the City’s collection. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consideration action to approve Resolution R-2017-46 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas authorizing Bastrop Art in Public Places to acquire through purchase five (5) permanent 
sculptures, amounting to $50,400 in accordance with the City’s purchasing policy 
 
  



 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Sculpture Images 

 Resolution 
 



1 

 

 
RESOLUTION NO. R-2017 - 46 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TX 
AUTHORIZING BASTROP ART IN PUBLIC PLACES TO AQUIRE THROUGH 
PURCHASE FIVE SCULPTURES TOTALING $50,400 ON BEHALF OF THE 
CITY OF BASTROP; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council has formed Bastrop Art in Public Places to expand the 

enjoyment, access, and appreciation of art in Bastrop, Texas; and 
 

WHEREAS, Bastrop Art in Public Places is to assist the City Council in making 
recommendations to acquire by purchase works of art for the enjoyment of Bastrop residents and 
visitors; and 
 

WHEREAS, Bastrop Art in Public Places voted unanimously to recommend the purchase 
of “Night Song” by John Maisano, “Rising from the Ashes” by Anthony St. James, “Sitatunga” by 
Dan Pogue and “A Mother’s Love” by Jay Schaan, and “A Scarlet Heart” by Alex Porter at their 
June 7th, 2017 meeting; and 
 

WHEREAS, Bastrop Art in Public Places has $55,000 in their Fiscal Year 2017 budget to 
acquire such works of art; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BASTROP, TEXAS: 

 
Section 1: Bastrop Art in Public places is authorized to make the purchase of the 

above-mentioned pieces of art in accordance with the City’s purchasing policy. 
 

Section 2: That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage, and it 
is so resolved.  
 
  



2 

 

 

DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Bastrop this 
11th day of July, 2017. 
 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 

Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       
David F. Bragg, City Attorney 
 
 



 

Anthony St James: “Rising from the Ashes” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Dan Pogue: “Sitatunga” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

John Maisiano: “Night Song” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

“A Mother’s Love”- Jay Schaan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

“A Scarlett Heart” by Alex Porter 



 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE:  July 11, 2017      AGENDA ITEM:  10B 
 
TITLE: 
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-47 of the City Council of Bastrop Texas, 
approving and accepting the transfer of real property described as lot one, Lanford Place 
Subdivision (properties R36831 and R48757), Bastrop County, Texas, from the Bastrop 
Economic Development Corporation (EDC); authorizing the execution of a special warranty deed; 
repealing all resolutions in conflict; and providing an effective date. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Shawn Kirkpatrick, Bastrop EDC Executive Director 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 

 
In January 2015, the Bastrop EDC Board voted to transfer property the EDC owned near the 
rodeo arena at Mayfest Hill to the City of Bastrop. However, there was no resolution or other 
documentation done at that time.  
 
The EDC’s legal counsel has recommended a resolution to rectify the situation and allow the 
transfer of the property to proceed. The EDC’s resolution was approved at their 06/19/17 Board 
meeting. A separate resolution is attached for the City Council’s approval. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-47 of the City Council of Bastrop Texas, 
approving and accepting the transfer of real property described as lot one, Lanford Place 
Subdivision (properties R36831 and R48757), Bastrop County, Texas, from the Bastrop 
Economic Development Corporation (EDC); authorizing the execution of a special warranty deed; 
repealing all resolutions in conflict; and providing an effective date. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Resolution 

 Exhibit A – Special Warranty Deed 

 Map showing property location 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. R-2017-47 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, 
TEXAS, APPROVING AND ACCEPTING THE TRANSFER OF REAL 
PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS LOT ONE, LANFORD PLACE 
SUBDIVISION, BASTROP COUNTY, TEXAS, FROM THE BASTROP 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION; AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION OF A SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED; REPEALING ALL 
RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Bastrop Economic Development Corporation, pursuant to Texas 

Local Government Code Section 505.152, desires to transfer title and possession to the 
Real Property to the City of Bastrop to promote public park purposes; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Bastrop finds it in the best interest of 
the City to accept such Real Property for park purposes. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BASTROP, TEXAS: 
 

Section 1.  That the City Council hereby approves and accepts the Bastrop 
Economic Development Corporation’s transfer of title and possession to the Real 
Property, described as Lot One in the Lanford Place Subdivision, Bastrop County, Texas, 
to the City of Bastrop to promote public park purposes. 
 

Section 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to memorialize the acceptance 
of the Real Property by execution of a Special Warranty Deed, in substantial form to 
Exhibit “A” hereto and such other documents reasonably necessary to complete the 
transfer of title and possession of the Real Property to the City of Bastrop. 
 

Section 3.  The recitals set out above are fully incorporated as if fully set forth 
herein. 
 

Section 4.  Any prior resolution of the City Council in conflict with the provisions 
contained in this resolution are hereby repealed and revoked. 

 
Section 5.  Should any part of this resolution be held to be invalid for any reason, 

the remainder shall not be affected thereby, and such remaining portions are hereby 
declared to be severable. 

 
Section 6.  This resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage, 

and it is duly resolved. 
  



 

 

DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Bastrop 
this 11th day of July 2017. 

 
 

APPROVED: 
        
             
       Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
David F. Bragg, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit “A” 
 

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 

 

 

 

STATE OF TEXAS   §  

    §  

COUNTY OF BASTROP § 

 

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS that BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION (“Grantor”), for and in consideration of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good 

and valuable consideration paid in cash to the Grantor by the Grantee named in this Deed, has 

granted, bargained, sold and conveyed and by these presents does grant, bargain, sell and convey 

unto the CITY OF BASTROP (“Grantee”), a Home-Rule City of the State of Texas, all of the 

property described as follows: 

 

Lot One (1), LANFORD PLACE, a subdivision in Bastrop County, Texas, 

according to the map or plat thereof recorded in Cabinet # 3, Page 97-B, Plat 

Records of Bastrop County, Texas, and as more precisely described in the survey 

plat attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein for all purposes. 

  

THIS CONVEYANCE IS MADE BY GRANTOR AND ACCEPTED BY GRANTEE subject  

to the terms, conditions and provisions of this Deed and further subject to all applicable easements, 

conditions, restrictions, covenants, mineral or royalty interests, mineral reservations, surface 

waivers, liens, encumbrances, regulations or orders of municipal and/or other governmental 

authorities, if any, or other matters of record, to the extent, but only to the extent, they are validly 

existing and affect the Property.  

 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Property, together with all and singular the rights and 

appurtenances thereto and in anywise belonging unto the said Grantee, its successors and assigns 

forever; and Grantor does hereby bind itself, its successors and assigns, to Warrant and Forever 

Defend all and singular the Property unto the said Grantee, its successors and assigns, against every 

person whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the same of any part thereof, by, through or 

under Grantor, but not otherwise.  

 

The remainder of this page intentionally is blank and signature pages follow. 

  

NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS 

 

IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON, YOU MAY REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OR ALL 

OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FROM ANY INSTRUMENT THAT 

TRANSFERS AN INTEREST IN REAL PROPERTY BEFORE IT IS FILED FOR 

RECORD IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER OR 

YOUR DRIVER’S LICENSE NUMBER. 

 



Exhibit “A” 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor herein has executed this Special Warranty Deed,  

to be effective as of the _____ day of ______________, 2017. 

 

GRANTOR: 

 

BASTROP ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, 

a Texas type B Economic Development Corporation 

 

 

By________________________________________________________ 

 Kristi Koch,  Vice-Chairperson to the Board of Directors,  

serving as Interim Chairperson 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By________________________________________________________ 

 Cam Chavez, Secretary to the Board of Directors 

 

 

State of Texas  

County of Bastrop 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of _______, 2017, by Kristi Koch, 

(Vice-Chairperson to the Board of Directors, serving as Interim Chairperson) of (Bastrop 

Economic Development Corporation), a Texas type B economic development corporation, on 

behalf of said corporation.  

 

 

(Personalized Seal)     Notary Public's Signature 

 

The remainder of this page intentionally is blank and grantee signature page follows. 

 

  



Exhibit “A” 
 

GRANTEE: 

 

AGREED AND ACCEPTED; 

 

CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 

a Texas home-rule municipality 

 

 

By________________________________________________________ 

 Lynda Humble, City Manager 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By________________________________________________________ 

 Ann Franklin, City Secretary  

 

State of Texas  

County of Bastrop 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of _______, 2017, by Lynda 

Humble, City Manager of Bastrop, Texas, a home-rule municipality, on behalf of said 

municipality. 

 

 

(Personalized Seal)     Notary Public's Signature 

 

 

After filing this document, please return to:   

Ann Franklin 

City Secretary 

Bastrop City Hall 

P.O. Box 427 

Bastrop Texas 78602 

  



                     EXHIBIT “A” 
SURVEY MAP OF REAL PROPERTY 



Lot 1, Lanford Place

Bastrop County GIS
Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus

Areas
Override 1
Override 2
Creeks and Streams

County Boundaries
BCAD Parcels
Parcels-Boundaries Only

US, State Highways
US
SH

Farm to Market
FM

Local Streets
LS

Other Roadways/Access
DW

June 19, 2017

This map may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. No warranty is made by the County of Bastrop regarding specific accuracy or completeness.
Bastrop County GIS, BCAD, BBEC, AWS, 2016

0 0.07 0.140.035 mi

0 0.085 0.170.0425 km

1:4,514



STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: July 11, 2017 AGENDA ITEM: 10C 

TITLE: 
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-44 of the City Council of the City of 
Bastrop, Texas authorizing the purchase of a parcel of land containing 1,639 square feet  in the 
amount of Twenty Thousand Four Hundred Eighty-Seven Dollars and Fifty Cents ($20,487.50) 
situated in Building Block 4 West of Water Street, according to the plat of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas recorded in Plat Cabinet 1, Slide 23A of the Plat Records of Bastrop County, and being a 
part of that tract described as 0.113 acre in a deed from Jack Griensenbeck, et ux, to 
Bastrop Chamber of Commerce dated November 2, 1993 and recorded in Volume 685, 
Page 498 of the Official Records of Bastrop County; granting the use of four (4) parking 
spaces for exclusive use to the building located at 927 Main Street for a term of Ninety-Nine 
(99) Years unless the Building or Parking Lot is demolished; authorizing the City Manager 
to execute a purchase agreement, closing documents, and any document necessary to 
finalize the purchase of the property; approving a repealing clause; and establishing an 
effective date. 

STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda K. Humble, City Manager 
Trey Job, Managing Director of Public Works and Leisure Services 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
The City is re-building a parking lot in the area known as Alley D at the corners of Pine and Pecan 
Streets.  The parking lot improvements include moving the utilities to underground, fixing 
drainage, and paving all of the parking lot.  

POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Given the public investment in improvements into this parking lot, there is a public purpose for the 
City to own and control the entire parking lot.  Article II, Section 3 of the Texas Constitution does 
not allow public funds to be invested for private purpose, and paving property that is currently 
unpaved constitutes public investment.   The property being acquired is used by each property 
owner for parking and has value attached to their building.  In addition to acquiring the land, the 
City will be granting exclusive use of parking spaces to each building for a period of 99 years or 
until the building or need for public parking is eliminated. 

There are four (4) pieces of property that the City needs to acquire in order to complete this 
project: 

• 1,663 square feet from Raymah Davis in the amount of $20,787.50 with three (3) parking
spaces.

• 1,142 square feet from Ruth and Richard Smarzik in the amount of $14,275.00 with three
(3) parking spaces.



 

• 1,639 square feet from the Bastrop Chamber of Commerce in the amount of $20,487.50 
with four (4) parking spaces. 

• 454 square feet from the Chestnut Street Limited in the amount of $0.00 through the 
execution of a Deed without Warranty and the use of one (1) parking space. 

 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
724-00-00-6712 (Bond account for Alley D Parking Project) 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-44 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas authorizing the purchase of a parcel of land containing 1,639 square feet  in the amount of 
Twenty Thousand Four Hundred Eighty-Seven Dollars and Fifty Cents ($20,487.50) situated in 
Building Block 4 West of Water Street, according to the plat of the City of Bastrop, Texas recorded 
in Plat Cabinet 1, Slide 23A of the Plat Records of Bastrop County, and being a part of that tract 
described as 0.113 acre in a deed from Jack Griensenbeck, et ux, to Bastrop Chamber of 
Commerce dated November 2, 1993 and recorded in Volume 685, Page 498 of the Official 
Records of Bastrop County, said Smarzik tract having originally been described in a deed from 
Jack Griesenbeck,; granting the use of four (4) parking spaces for exclusive use to the building 
located at 927 Main Street for a term of Ninety-Nine (99) Years unless the Building or Parking Lot 
is demolished; authorizing the City Manager to execute a purchase agreement, closing 
documents, and any document necessary to finalize the purchase of the property; approving a 
repealing clause; and establishing an effective date. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Conditional Purchase Agreement  

• Resolution with Exhibit A  



1 

RESOLUTION NO. R-2017-44 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF A PARCEL OF LAND CONTAINING 1,639 
SQUARE FEET  IN THE AMOUNT OF TWENTY THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED 
EIGHTY-SEVEN DOLLARS AND FIFTY CENTS ($20,487.50) SITUATED IN BUILDING 
BLOCK 4 WEST OF WATER STREET, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT OF THE CITY OF 
BASTROP, TEXAS RECORDED IN PLAT CABINET 1, SLIDE 23A OF THE PLAT 
RECORDS OF BASTROP COUNTY, AND BEING A PART OF THAT TRACT 
DESCRIBED AS 0.113 ACRE IN A DEED FROM JACK GRIENSENBECK, ET UX, TO 
BASTROP CHAMBER OF COMMERCE DATED NOVEMBER 2, 1993 AND 
RECORDED IN VOLUME 685, PAGE 498 OF THE OFFICIAL RECORDS OF BASTROP 
COUNTY; GRANTING THE USE OF FOUR (4) PARKING SPACES FOR EXCLUSIVE 
USE TO THE BUILDING LOCATED AT 927 MAIN STREET FOR A TERM OF NINETY-
NINE (99) YEARS UNLESS THE BUILDING OR PARKING LOT IS DEMOLISHED; 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A PURCHASE 
AGREEMENT, CLOSING DOCUMENTS, AND ANY DOCUMENT 
NECESSARY TO FINALIZE THE PURCHASE OF THE PROPERTY; APPROVING A 
REPEALING CLAUSE; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Bastrop, Texas is re-building a parking lot in an area known as 
Alley D; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Bastrop, Texas is making improvements including paving, 
relocation of utilities and drainage; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Bastrop, Texas needs to purchase 1,639 square feet of property 
from Bastrop Chamber of Commerce in order to own and control the property for public purpose; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City of Bastrop, Texas recognizes that the property being purchased is 
currently used for private parking and adds value to the main structure located at 927 Main Street 
for which exclusive parking spaces will be provided as a part of this transaction. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BASTROP, TEXAS: 

Section 1: That the City of Bastrop, Texas will purchase a parcel of land containing 
1,639 square feet from Bastrop Chamber of Commerce in the amount of Twenty Thousand Four 
Hundred Eighty-Seven Dollars and Fifty Cents ($20,487.50) situated in Building Block 4 West of 
Water Street, according to the plat of the City of Bastrop, Texas recorded in Plat Cabinet 1, Slide 
23A of the Plat Records of Bastrop County, and being a part of that tract described as 0.113 acre 
in a deed from Jack Griensenbeck, et ux, to Bastrop Chamber of Commerce dated November 2, 
1993 and recorded in Volume 685, Page 498 of the Official Records of Bastrop County, said 
Smarzik tract having originally been described in a deed from Jack Griesenbeck, as shown in 
Exhibit A. 



2 
 

 Section 2:   That the City of Bastrop, Texas will grant four (4) permanent parking places 
to exclusive use to the building located at 927 Main Street for a term of Ninety-Nine (99) years 
unless the building or parking lot is demolished first. 
 
 Section 3: That the City of Bastrop, Texas City Council authorizes the City Manager 
to execute all necessary documents to complete this transaction. 
 

Section 4: That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage, and it 
is so resolved.  
 

DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Bastrop this 
27th day of June, 2017. 
 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 

Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       
David F. Bragg, City Attorney 
 
 



STATE OF TEXAS   §  
     § 
COUNTY OF BASTROP  §  

CONDITIONAL PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

THAT, THE BASTROP CHAMBER OF COMMERCE, a Texas non-profit organization, 
hereinafter referred to as “SELLER”, for and in consideration of the agreed purchase price of 
TWENTY THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED AND EIGHTY-SEVEN DOLLARS AND 
50/100 ($20,487.50) DOLLARS (the “Purchase Price”) and upon the terms and conditions hereof, 
contracts to GRANT, SELL and CONVEY by General Warranty Deed to the CITY OF 
BASTROP, TEXAS, a Texas home rule municipality, hereinafter referred to as “PURCHASER”, 
a good, marketable title, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances of every kind (except liens 
for current taxes and assessments), to the following described property (the “Property”) in the City 
of Bastrop, Bastrop County, Texas, to-wit: 

PROPERTY:   As more fully described in metes and bounds in EXHIBIT “A” attached hereto, 
the Property is described as follows: 

All that certain tract or parcel of land containing 1,639 square feet situated in Building Block 4 
West of Water Street, according to the plat of the City of Bastrop, Texas recorded in Plat Cabinet 
1, Slide 23A of the Plat Records of Bastrop County, and being a part of that tract described as 
0.113 acre in a deed from Jack Griesenbeck, et ux, to Bastrop Chamber of Commerce dated 
November 2, 1993 and recorded in Volume 685, Page 498 of the Official Records of Bastrop 
County, Texas. 

Together with all improvements incident or belonging thereto.  

Purchase and Sale Agreement:  SELLER agrees to sell and convey the Property to 
PURCHASER, and PURCHASER conditionally agrees to buy and pay SELLER for the 
Property. The promises by PURCHASER and SELLER stated in this contract are the 
consideration for the formation of this contract. 

Offer Conditional:  PURCHASER’S obligation to buy or convey the real property described in 
this agreement is conditional and shall not be effective until such action is approved by the City 
Council of the City of Bastrop, Texas.  

SELLER hereby agrees to furnish PURCHASER a Release, Partial Release or Subordination of 
Lien, if applicable. 

Special Conditions:  PURCHASER AND SELLER acknowledge and agree to the following: 

(1) SELLER, and SELLER’S heirs, successors and assigns shall reserve from conveyance, for 
a period of ninety-nine (99) years or until such time as the building adjacent to the Property and 
being located at 927 Main Street, Bastrop, Texas and being owned by the SELLER, his heirs, 
successors and assigns is demolished or abandoned, whichever occurs first, an exclusive parking 
easement consisting of four (4) parking spaces upon the Property with right of access; said 



 

reservation shall be exclusive for parking purposes, but Grantee shall possess all other rights to 
occupy and use said easement, but only to the extent that such occupation and use does not 
materially interfere with Grantor’s use of the easement. Grantor and Grantee acknowledge and 
agree, however, that Grantee’s use may interrupt Grantor’s reserved rights for limited periods of 
time as necessary to construct improvements and/or install utilities on the Property and such 
interruptions shall not be considered a material interference. 

 (2) SELLER shall file a Certificate of Interested Parties (TEC Form 1295).  
SELLER acknowledges that for contracts needing City Council approval, the City may not accept 
or enter into a contract until it has received from the SELLER a completed, signed, and notarized TEC 
Form 1295 complete with a certificate number assigned by the Texas Ethics Commission (“TEC”), 
pursuant to Texas Government Code § 2252.908 and the rules promulgated thereunder by the TEC.  The 
SELLER understands that failure to provide said form complete with a certificate number assigned by 
the TEC will prohibit the City from entering into the Contract. 

Pursuant to the rules prescribed by the TEC, the TEC Form 1295 must be completed online 
through the TEC’s website, assigned a certificate number, printed, signed and notarized, and 
provided to the City.  The TEC Form 1295 must be provided to the City prior to contract 
execution.  SELLER acknowledges that the City does not have the ability to verify the information 
included in a TEC Form 1295, and further has no obligation nor undertakes responsibility for 
advising the SELLER with respect to the proper completion of the TEC Form 1295. 
 

The PURCHASER, without expense to the SELLER, shall prepare the General Warranty Deed 
document and shall bear the expense of all closing costs. 

 
INDEPENDENCE TITLE COMPANY shall act as Agent, and the SELLER agrees that closing 
shall occur at a mutually agreeable time and day at the Agent’s office located at 301 Highway 71 
West, Suite 106, Bastrop, Texas and SELLER shall appear at Agent’s office at said time to 
execute a GENERAL WARRANTY DEED in substantially similar form as EXHIBIT “B” and 
other conveyance documents reasonably required by Agent.  

Until title has been conveyed to the PURCHASER, loss or damage to the Property by fire or other 
casualty, except that caused by PURCHASER, shall be at the risk of the SELLER and the amount 
thereof shall be deducted from the Purchase Price.  In the event this purchase fails to close through 
no fault of SELLER, PURCHASER shall repair any damage caused by PURCHASER’S entry 
on the Property. This shall be SELLER’S sole remedy in the event of PURCHASER’S 
determination not to proceed to proceed with closing.  This contract shall not be binding upon 
either party until it is accepted by the PURCHASER, acting by and through its City Manager, or 
other designated official.  Such acceptance shall be acknowledged by the City Manager, or other 
designated official’s execution of this contract.  This contract contains the entire consideration for 
the purchase and conveyance of the Property, it being agreed and understood that there is no valid 
other written or parole agreement regarding the Property between SELLER and the City, or any 
officer or employee of the City.   

This Agreement shall remain binding on the Parties for a period of 180 days after execution by the 
City Manager, or other designated city official.  After such period should the sale that is the subject 



 

of this contract not close, such failure shall be deemed as PURCHASER’S decision not to proceed 
with closing. 

The PURCHASER may take possession of the Property immediately upon the SELLER’S 
execution of this contract. 

EXECUTED this the _____ day of _______________________, 2017. 
 
 

SELLER: 
 
 
        
Becki Womble, IOM, President and CEO 
 
PURCHASER: 
 
CITY OF BASTROP,  
a Texas home rule municipality 
 
 
By:        
 Lynda K. Humble, City Manager 
 
 
ATTEST: 

  ____________________________________ 
  Ann Franklin, City Secretary 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
[Insert Survey] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

[Form of General Warranty Deed] 
 

NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS:  IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON, YOU 
MAY REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OR ALL OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FROM 
ANY INSTRUMENT THAT TRANSFERS AN INTEREST IN REAL PROPERTY BEFORE IT 
IS FILED FOR RECORD IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS:  YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY 
NUMBER OR YOUR DRIVER'S LICENSE NUMBER. 
 

GENERAL WARRANTY DEED 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
   § 
COUNTY OF BASTROP    § 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That The Bastrop Chamber of  
Commerce ,  a  Texas non-profi t  organizat ion,  act ing by and through i ts  duly 
authorized off icial  (“Grantor”), for the sum of Ten and No/100 Dollars ($10.00) and other 
good and valuable consideration to Grantor in hand paid by the CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS, 
a home-rule municipality located in Bastrop County, Texas (“Grantee"), whose mailing address 
is P.O. Box 427, Bastrop, Bastrop County, Texas 78602, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
consideration are hereby acknowledged and confessed, has GRANTED, SOLD AND 
CONVEYED, and by these presents does GRANT, SELL AND CONVEY, unto Grantee, 
subject to all of the reservations, exceptions and other matters set forth or referred to herein, 
the property depicted on EXHIBIT“ A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference 
(“Property”). 
 

This conveyance is expressly made subject to all validly existing restrictions, covenants, 
conditions, rights-of-way, easements, mineral reservations and royalty reservations, and other 
matters of record, if any, affecting the Property. 
 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Property, together with all and singular the rights and 
appurtenances thereto in anywise belonging, unto Grantee, and Grantee's successors or assigns, 
forever; and Grantor does hereby bind Grantor, and Grantor's successors and assigns, to 
WARRANT AND FOREVER DEFEND all and singular the Property unto Grantee, Grantee's 
successors and assigns, against every person whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the 
same, or any part thereof except, however, that this conveyance is made subject to the liens 
securing payment of ad valorem taxes for the current and all subsequent years. 
 

Grantor, and Grantor’s heirs, successors and assigns, hereby expressly reserve and retain 
from conveyance for a period of ninety-nine (99) years or until such time as the building adjacent 
to the Property and being located at 927 Main Street, Bastrop, Texas and being owned by the 
Grantor, and Grantor’s heirs, successors and assigns is demolished or abandoned, whichever 



 

occurs first, an exclusive parking easement consisting of four (4) parking spaces upon the Property 
with right of access; said reservation shall be exclusive for parking purposes, but Grantee shall 
possess all other rights to occupy and use said easement, but only to the extent that such occupation 
and use does not materially interfere with Grantor’s use of the easement. Grantor and Grantee 
acknowledge and agree, however, that Grantee’s use may interrupt Grantor’s reserved rights for 
limited periods of time as necessary to construct improvements and/or install utilities on the 
Property and such interruptions shall not be considered a material interference.  
 

No responsibility for validity of real estate title assumed by attorney preparing this 
instrument unless a written title opinion rendered. 
 
EXECUTED effective as of this the ____ day of _____________, 2017. 
 
 
 GRANTOR: 
 
        

Becki Womble, IOM, President and CEO of the 
Bastrop Chamber of Commerce 

 
              
 

Acknowledgement 
 

THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
  § 

COUNTY OF _________  § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ____ day of _________________ 2017, 
by Becki Womble, IOM, President and CEO of the Bastrop Chamber of Commerce for the 
purposes stated herein. 
 
 
 
              
        Notary Public's Signature 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 

 
              
 
 
AGREED AND ACCEPTED: 
 
CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS, 
a Texas home-rule municipality 
 
 

 By:_________________________________ 
  Lynda K. Humble, City Manager 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
 
After recordation please return to:   City of Bastrop 

    Attn:  Lynda K. Humble, City Manager 
    P.O. Box 427,  
    Bastrop, Texas 78602 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

[Insert Survey] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 









6Match Existing

TC 368.37

Gut 367.89

Match Existing

SW 368.45

TC 368.49

Gut 367.99

TP 368.32

TP 368.36

SW 368.54

SW 368.62

TC 368.72

TP 368.39

SW 368.68

Match Existing

TC 368.65

Gut 368.21

Match Existing

SW 368.79

TC 368.76

Gut 368.26

TP 368.42

TP 368.44

TC 368.79

TP 368.46

SW 368.78

SW 368.80

Match Existing

SW 368.82

TC 368.75

TP 368.42

TC 368.74

TP 368.24

TC 368.85

TP 368.52

TC 368.89

TP 368.56

TC 369.28

TP 368.78

TC 369.30

TP 369.30

TP 369.30

TP 369.27

TP 369.35

TC 369.65

TP 369.32

TP 369.28

TP 369.30

TP 369.95

TP 369.95

TP 368.95

TP 369.21

TC 369.21

TP 368.71

TC 369.23

TP 368.90

TC 369.67

TP 369.34

TC 369.19

TP 369.19

TC 369.19

TP 368.69

SW 369.12

TC 369.09

TP 368.59

TC 369.16

TP 368.66

TP 368.56

SW 369.14

SW 369.09

TC 368.50

TP 368.00

Match Existing

TC 368.17

Gut 367.67

Match Existing

TC 368.02

Gut 367.15

TC 367.97

Gut 367.47

Match Existing

SW 368.33

SW 368.15

Match Existing

SW 368.19

Match Existing

SW 368.04

TC 368.22

TP 367.72

TC 368.13

TP 367.63

TP 368.59

SW 368.50

SW 368.65

SW 368.60

SW 369.05

SW 369.10

TP 368.62

SW 369.09

SW 369.14

TC 369.14

TP 368.67

TP 368.59

TP 368.27

TC 369.28

TP 368.78

TC 368.90

TP 368.40

TC 369.14

TP 368.64

TC 369.02

TP 368.52

TC 369.14

TP 368.64

TC 369.19

TP 368.69

TC 369.07

TP 368.57

TC 369.02

TP 368.52

TC 368.74

TP 368.24

TC 368.71

TP 368.21

TC 368.59

TP 368.09

TC 368.63

TP 368.13

TC 369.11

TP 368.61

TC 368.73

TP 368.23

TC 368.82

TP 368.32

TC 368.69

TP 368.19

TC 368.71

TP 368.21

TC 368.99

TP 368.49

TC 368.78

TP 368.28

TC 368.88

TP 368.38

TC 369.88

TP 368.38

TC 368.31

TP 368.31

SW 368.73

SW 368.68

Match Existing

TC 368.54

TP 368.03

TP 368.49

Match Existing

TP 367.93

Match Existing

TP 367.88

Match Existing

TP 367.86

TC 368.36

 TP 367.86

Match Existing

TC 368.19

Gut 368.18

TC 368.43

 TP 367.93

 TP 367.76

 TP 367.93

Match Existing

TC 368.11

Gut 368.11

TC 368.36

 TP 367.86

Match

Existing Inlet

TC 367.52

Match

Existing Inlet

TC 367.48

Match

Existing Inlet

TC 367.45

TC 368.21

 TP 367.71

TC 368.36

TP 367.86

 TP 367.78

TC 368.44

TP 367.94

TC 368.75

 TP 368.25

 TP 367.86

TC 368.53

TP 368.03

 TP 367.51

TC 368.15

 TP 367.65

TC 368.43

 TP 367.93

TC 368.78

TP 368.28

TC 368.87

 TP 368.37

TC 368.51

TP 368.01

TC 368.48

 TP 367.98

TC 368.80

 TP 368.30

 TP 368.16

 TP 367.96

 TP 368.38

TC 368.56

TP 368.06

TC 368.33

TP 367.83

TC 368.05

TP 367.55

TC 368.35

TP 367.85

TC 368.05

TP 367.55

TC 368.21

TP 367.71

TC 368.25

TP 367.75

TC 368.47

 TP 367.97

TC 368.50

 TP 368.00

TC 368.82

 TP 368.32

The seal appearing on this document was authorized by

Timothy L. Sanders, P.E. 95880 on July 13, 2016.

Alteration of a sealed document without proper notification

to the responsible engineer is an offense under the Texas

Engineering Practice Act.

Texas Registered
Engineering Firm

F-2011

N

E

G

S

S

N
O

I

AL

N

E

S

S

E

R

O

F

P

I

T

A

T

E

E

O
F

T

A

X

R

E

95880

TIMOTHY L. SANDERS

E

L

I

C
E

N

S

D

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

FOR REVIEW ONLY

Field Book #493

S:\Kevin\LP3\16-6565\dwg\grading plan.dwg

TC 368.43

TP 367.93

TC 368.54

TP 368.04

TC 368.51

TP 368.01

TC 368.62

TP 368.12

SW 368.55

TC 368.26

TP 368.26

TC 368.79

TP 368.29

TC 368.83

TP 368.33

TC 368.75

TP 368.25

TC 368.39

TP 367.89

Proposed Curb Inlet

TC 368.05  Gut  367.30

18" FL Out 364.38

(Contractor To Verify)

 Proposed Grate Inlet

Top of Grate 368.15

18" FL Out 365.15

Existing Grate Inlet

Top of Grate 368.15

18" FL In 364.48

18" FL Out 364.48

Proposed N-12 HP

Storm Sewer

74 LF @ 0.91%

Proposed Concrete Pavement

tjob
Rectangle

tjob
Callout
4 spaces Bastrop Chamber of Commerce



 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE:  July 11, 2017      AGENDA ITEM:  10D 
 
TITLE: 
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-49 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas confirming the Economic Development Board and Housing Authority appointments of the 
Mayor, as required in Section 3.08 of the City’s Charter, as outlined in Exhibit A; and establishing 
an effective date. 
 
STAFF REPRESENTATIVE: 
Lynda K. Humble, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
Section 3.08, Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem, of the City Charter states that the Mayor shall appoint 
members to all City boards and commissions, subject to confirmation by the City Council. 
 
POLICY EXPLANATION: 
Mayor Connie Schroeder has reviewed all applications and has made appointments to various 
City boards and commissions.  In an effort to be open and transparent, Mayor Schroeder has 
prepared a detailed memorandum outlining her appointments.  The memorandum is attached as 
Exhibit A to the Resolution seeking confirmation of Council as required by the Charter. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE: 
N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Consider action to approve Resolution No. R-2017-49 of the City Council of the City of Bastrop, 
Texas confirming the Economic Development Board and Housing Authority appointments of the 
Mayor, as required in Section 3.08 of the City’s Charter, as outlined in Exhibit A; and establishing 
an effective date. 
  



 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Resolution 

 Memo 



1 

 

 
RESOLUTION NO. R-2017-49 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BASTROP, TEXAS 
CONFIRMING THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD AND HOUSING 
AUTHORITY APPOINTMENTS OF THE MAYOR, AS REQUIRED IN SECTION 
3.08 OF THE CITY’S CHARTER, AS OUTLINED IN EXHIBIT A; AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, Section 3.08, Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem, of the City Charter states that the 

Mayor shall appoint members to all City boards and commissions, subject to confirmation by the 
City Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, Mayor Connie Schroeder has completed a review of applications to the City’s 
boards and commissions and has made appointments to the Economic Development Board and 
Housing Authority as outlined in Exhibit A; and   

 
WHEREAS, City Council must confirm these appointments as required by the City 

Charter. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BASTROP, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1: That Mayor Connie Schroeder appointed the following members to the 

Economic Development Board and Housing Authority: 
 

Economic Development Board  
 

Place 1: Connie Schroeder (Piney Ridge) Retired registered Civil Engineer. Experience in 
design, construction and land development, 15 years in corporate high tech 
industry served as Director of Site Services and Chief of Staff for business group 

 
Housing Authority   
 

Place 3: Carlton Harris (East Bastrop) – Previously served on Housing Authority Board 
 

Section 2: That the City Council of the City of Bastrop confirms Mayor Schroeder’s 
appointments to the Economic Development Board and Housing Authority as outlined in Exhibit 
A. 
 

Section 3: That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage, and it 
is so resolved.  
 

DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Bastrop this 
11th day of July, 2017. 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 

Connie B. Schroeder, Mayor 



2 

 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Ann Franklin, City Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       
David F. Bragg, City Attorney 
 
 

 



 

1 
 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 
To:   Honorable Council Members 
 

From:  Mayor Connie Schroeder 
 

Date:  July 11, 2017 
 

RE:   Board Appointments  
 
I want to thank each of you for the unanimous approval of my 30 appointments on June 27, 2017.  
City Council, Staff, and Boards together all play a vital role in order for the City to operate and set 
the future.  I believe your approval was another step in providing an open and inclusive 
government.  
 
Earlier, I shared my intent to have individuals serve on only one Board, except in the case where 
a Board’s bylaws specifically require representation by a member of another Board.  This policy 
has increased citizen participation and moved our Boards closer to being a reflection of our 
community.  
 
As a reminder, I set guidelines for reviewing applications: 

 Maximize the number of citizen voices to be heard and limit service to one Board. 

 Enhance diversification on the Boards (inclusive of geography, gender, age and race) to 
more closely reflect the community it represents. 

 Confirm purpose and scope of each Board. 

 Focus on the skills and knowledge needed to most effectively fulfill each Board’s mission. 

 Relieve citizens of serving who have had attendance issues. 

 Follow recommendation of Board nominating committee as defined in bylaws.  

 Solicit input from Staff Liaison and/or Executive Director of each Board regarding specific 
skills needed. 

 
I respect each of you and am encouraged by the teamwork and strength of our working 
relationship that has developed in just two months.  Based on Council discussion regarding the 
importance of my serving on the Bastrop Economic Development Board, I have appointed 
myself to Place 1. 
 
Below you will find my Board appointments: 
 
Economic Development Board (Term ends 2019) 

Place 1: Connie Schroeder (Piney Ridge) Retired registered Civil Engineer. Experience in 
design, construction and land development, 15 years in corporate high tech 
industry served as Director of Site Services and Chief of Staff for business group 

 
Housing Authority (Term ends 2019) 

Place 3: Carlton Harris (East Bastrop) – Previously served on Housing Authority Board 



 

2 
 

 
 
Remaining Board Appointments -  
 
In order for every Board to be complete, I need to make the following appointments.  I have listed 
all places and indicated “application pending” for the places I have commitments from an 
individual to submit an application.  I chose not to list the name until the application is submitted.  
Please note below the remaining need is one (1) place and four (4) alternates. I am confident we 
have a wealth of qualified individuals whose service will enhance citizen engagement and 
strengthen our City.   
 
 
Bastrop Art in Public Places 
 Place 1 – Board working to bring nominee forward 
 
Cemetery Board 
 Place 1 – Application pending 
 Place 2 
 
Construction Standards Board 
 Place 2 – Application pending 
 Alt 1 
 Alt 2 
 
Main Street Advisory Board 
 Place 5 – Nominating committee working to fill position 
 
Parks Board/Public Tree Advisory Board 
 Place 8 – Application pending 
 
Zoning Board of Adjustment 
 Place 3 – Application pending 
 Place 5 – Application pending 
 Alt 1 
 Alt 2 
 
In closing, I respectfully request the City Council confirm the two appointments listed above as 
required by Section 3.08 of the City Charter. 
 


	Agenda
	2A - Ethics Ordinance
	2A - Clean Ethics Ordinance
	2A - McAnally Comments
	2A - Goldsmith Comments

	5A Kevin Berry
	5B - Mayor's Rpt
	5C - Councilmember Report
	5D - City Manager's Report
	7A - Copper Exceedance
	7B - Community 
	7B - Applications

	8 - Citizen Comments
	9A - June 27, 2017 Min
	9A - Draft June 27, 2017

	9B - Emer, Fire & Rescue
	9B - Ordinance
	9B - Exhibit A

	9C - Taxicabs
	9C - Ordinance
	9C - Powerpoint

	9D - Thornhill Group
	9D - Resolution
	9D - Proposal

	10A - BAIPP Sculp.
	10A - Resolution
	10A - Sculptures

	10B - Lanford Pl
	10B - Resolution
	10B - Exhibit A
	10B - Map

	10C - Chamber of Commerce
	10C - Resolution
	10C - Purchase Agreement
	10C - Exh A Survey
	10C - Exh B Parking

	10D - Mayor's Appt.
	10D - Resolution
	10D - Exhibit A




